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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor
And City Council
City of Lincoln, [llinois

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lincoln, Illinois, as of and for the
year ended April 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Lincoln, [llinois as of April 30,2015, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedules of finding
progress and budgetary comparison information on pages 49-62 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.

Orher liformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Lincoln, Illinois’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, comparative statements of financial position — sewer fund, comparative
statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position — sewer fund, and statistical section, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, comparative statements of financial position —
sewer fund, and comparative statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position — sewer fund are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonma jor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been sub jected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 9, 2015 on
our consideration of the City of Lincoln, [llinois' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Lincoln, [llinois’ internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Eteas Prcolgeuadew + Pgolen

Certified Public Accountants
Springfield, Illinois

November9, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor
And City Council
City of Lincoln, Illinois

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lincoln, Illinois as of and for the
year ended April 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of
Lincoln, Illinois’ basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 9, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Lincoln, Illinois’
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Lincoln, Illinois’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Lincoln, Illinois” internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph ofthis section
and would not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Lincoln, lllinois’ financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

WW“’”VW

Certified Public Accountants
Springfield, Illinois

November 9, 2015



City of Lincoln, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
April 30, 2015

There are no findings to report at April 30, 2015.



City of Lincoln, Illinois
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Prior Year Findings
April 30,2015

There were no findings to report at April 30, 2014.



City of Lincoln, [llinois

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2015

Assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS........cceimmimiiiieiriererccrtn et
Restricted cash and cash equiValEnts ............cccoevioreeireoe e

INVESHIMENLS ... v ettt ettt seeeaen e st eeaasae s eve eraeneanbe ennmse v
Accounts receivable....

Taxes receivable. £ .. ... omumme s Srvmmsmess e sssiivasssensorsansassnsaanossassasnesans ror sosidas
Prepaid expenses.........c.c........
Due from other OVEIMMENLS .........cooeeeeeceirione srinee eetes seaeeeeeee et e seneneen

Total CUITENE ASSELS ....ovivvivieeeeeerre it ere et cae e ee s e eaesaeere e een b s e eaerans

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets, not being depreciated............cccveivrrecreeniinenneeissir s
Property and EQUIPIMENL .....c..c.ccvuerermmreiriniceieresrececrcreeee e ressseesseserecsesnan cerees
Utility systems... .
Total Cost of Capltal Assets
Less accumulated depreciation....

NEt Capital ASSELS......c.eviriirericceeriemirire e s e sttt et seneset s
TOTAL ASSETS ...ttt cetb s s st essast st s e

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable.....
Premium paid on bonds
Current Portion — notes and bonds payable

TotalCurrent Li@bilities. .....ceeeseisecriceiinsssessems sossasinssssasansassssss iassionsssosss

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes and bonds payable (less current portion) ............occevverieeccrnnrne v seeeenes
Net pension obligation ............cc.cceucceveinerioniienene
OPEB obligation ...

Total Noncurrent Liabiliti€s. .........coceoveveeriiriirieieiieieeeeeee s e e

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Uneamed revenues — Property 1aXES ..........cowweeeeresencmrsemsessoresasmeseniens e
Uneamed revVenues — Other ........cccovveiveiiviececreeveereereeesssae e e sreerete e en aaeen

Total Deferred Inflows 0f RESOUTCES........ccvvvevieueiiivreiee et

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES ...t ceenecesiessemsecssecseaess s eess s

NET POSITION
Net investment in Capital @SSELS........icvevivververeeeseeeereeeere et e cerere e s
BUESITICEET 5, ot cemeenseasntusnes suodeverTame e iamses ne s o S¥5RESEFTTRTTTs o oo TE5 TR TR ST g0 TS 4 TTE RS S 5T
UNFESITICIEA. ... v et eeerteee et ereeteeraeseese e sneen sraeseass e semsers saesasesessanstensannssenre

TOTAL NET POSITION......cccooiiiiiriiirriiiinieeii e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the {inancial statements.

Primary Government

Statement |

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ 3,598,961 $ 416,717 $ 4,015,678
236,911 272,505 509,416
526,143 - 526,143
30,806 348,190 378,996
1,854,600 - 1,854,600
- 7,053 7,053
1.723.512 - 1.723.512
7.970.933 1.044.465 9.015,398
147,238 - 147,238
22,349,239 - 22,349,239
- 15.955.156 15.955.156
22,496,477 15,955,156 38,451,633
( 10.648.253) ( _8.347.334) ( 18.995.587)
11.848.224 7.607.822 19,456,046
19,819,157 8.652.287 28.471.444
110,251 - 110,251
- 97,427 97,427
286.865 525,000 811.865
397.116 622.427 1.019.543
2,521,738 4,450,000 6,971,738
1,266,576 - 1,266,576
306.752 - 306,752
4.095.066 4.450.000 8.545.066
1,854,600 - 1,854,600
45.850 - 45.850
1.900.450 - 1.900.450
6.392.632 5,072,427 11,465,059
9,039,621 2,535,395 11,575,016
3,216,723 1,149,892 4,366,615
_1.170.181 ( __105.427) 1.064.754
$13,426,525 $_3.579,860 $17.006.385



FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS:
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:

General ZOVEMMENt.........cccervevenmrereieerseesrnne
Public safety.........ccoociiiiiinn,

Economic development .

Public works sssuisssciisisamisiois
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:

Sewer ULty oo,

Total Primary Government

City of Lincoln, Illinois Statement 2
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015
Net (Expense) Revenue
Program Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital Business-
Charges for Grants and Grants and Govemnmental type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
($ 2,722,296) $ 359,056 $ 443,047 $ - ($ 1,920,193) $ - ($ 1,920,193)
( 3,810,794) 121,512 27,444 - ( 3,661,838) - ( 3,661,838)
( 1,202,145) - 339,650 - (  862,495) - ( 862,495)
( 1,991,322) 226,390 488,937 - ( 663,730) - ( 663,730)
( 16.536) - - - ( 16.536) - ( 16.536)
( _9.743.093) 706.958 1.299.078 612,265 ( _7.124.792) - ( _7.124,792)
( _2.373.438) 2.889.050 - = 2 _ 515,612 __515.6i2
($12.116,531) $_3,596,008 $_1.299.078 $__612265 ( _7.124.792) 515,612 ( _6.609.180)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 897.354 - 897,354
Replacement taxes 203,500 - 203,500
Road and bridge taxes 72,991 - 72,991
Sales and use taxes 3,795,179 - 3,795,179
Income taxes 1,461,216 - 1,461,216
Telecommunications taxes 298,545 - 298,545
Utility taxes 754,956 - 754,956
Video gaming taxes 131,676 - 131,676
Hotel/motel taxes 176,452 - 176,452
Other taxes 21,607 - 21,607
Interest income 8,398 943 9,341
Refunds and reimbursements 183,701 - 183,701
Miscellaneous 125.372 68,451 193.823
Total general revenues 8.130.947 69.394 8.200.341
Change in net position 1,006,155 585,006 1,591,161
Net Position — Beginning 12.420.370 2.994 854 15.415.224
Net Position - Ending $13,426,525 $_3.579,860 $17.006,385

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements



Assets
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalentssesss s s mmmssimessim

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Due from other governments
Accounts receivable

TOTAL ASSETS.......ccceceuue.

IV EStMENtS s amvemusa o R R S 5
T aAXES FECCIVADIC, onyeensomssmsmmmsnmss s i e rnnse s s s S Ses

Liabilities and Fund Balances

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable........o...veviiriiiiin e e e
Deferred INCOME ...cuieviiiirasieimiiiacsinrsesstresssessassssssscrssrsssionssssseses

Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:

D E S ERVIT R e st ot s vt puimss s v st as el s £
Special projects:mnmsimss st s s e

Unassigned:

General fund s e msstmns risies s st
Total Fund BalancCes .......ccooccuvviveiirenmiieriiisiinesiseeiissnssensssanes

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

City of Lincoln, Illinois Statement 3
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
April 30, 2015
Other Total
General Motor TIF Governmental Governmental
Corporate Fuel Tax Fund Funds Funds
$ 638,337 $ 691,542 $1,104,478 $1,164,604 $3,598,961
214,522 - - 22,389 236,911
526,143 - - - 526,143
1,673,400 - - 181,200 1,854,600
1,689,779 33,733 - = 1,723,512
25.205 5.601 - - 30.806
$4,767,386 $_730,876 $1,104,478 $1.368,193 $7,970,933
$ 90,105 $ 7,053 $ - $ 13,093 $ 110,251
1,719,250 - - 181.200 1,900,450
1,809,355 7.053 - 194.293 2,010,701
- “ - 22,389 22,389
214,522 723,823 1,104,478 1,151,511 3,194,334
2.743.509 - - - 2,743,509
2,958,031 723.823 1,104,478 1.173.900 5.960.232
$4,767.386 $_730.876 $1,104,478 $1,368,193 $7,970,933

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

10



City of Lincoln, Illinois
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
April 30, 2015

Total Fund Balances — Total Governmental FUnds ............cc.cccoooviiviiiiieciecicieeeeeeeeeceeere e e $ 5,960,232

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds............ccccooiiiviiicciveis e e 11,848,224

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds:

G.O. bonds payable, CUITENE .........ccoiiiieieiiiieiie sttt ( 171,000)
T.LF. G.O. bond payable, CUMTENL............coriviirerieieiirini e st seeceeas et saessaseseeneesasseessesenes ( 90,000)
NOLES PAYAblE, CUITENT cire. v usimiscmmmmssmieesennscesesenasssscestemsisne redis s isasiessmuesesiaieisnss TTsssasesss Tasrasens ( 25,865)
G.O. bonds payable, NONCUITENL ..........cociieiiireirerieiesiens srererreiene seeeeresteseesasassessesseses sesesssenes ( 163,000)
T.LLF. G.O. bonds payable, NONCUITENT .........c.ceoiiiinreirereiriniereereeieite e ree sttt creneeaes ( 2,195,000)
Notes payable, NONCUITENT ......c.ccueviecveriieeeiirieee et eeesaeee e e sssaeresae e asessaseesessessensesenes ( 163,738)
O PEB OBl GAtION... .- 0nc s+ vssens i wmsmsne o3 aums 5T s T TS5 554 55 o0 ma S8 i st S5l o FTHFSATaboRa TS ( 306,752)
Net PenSioN ODLIZATION .......eivurriirieereeiiieriiirieeeteest e e reeste et sreeesee s s e s setessesssssessensensaansannsens ( _1,266.576)
Net position of GOVErnmMENtal ACHVILIES ..........cueiivieiieriieieercreeie e st eeteaeieeesesaeresaes sresesas e srranaes $13.426,525

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, [llinois Statement 4
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30,2015

Other Total
General Motor TIF Govemmental Govemmental
Corporate Fuel Tax Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES:
PrOPEItY TAXES. .. coevueeirerieieninrtirinresiesseeeessessesasesseset s sstessssss s seseseanns $ 712,956 5 - $§ 6,182 $ 178216 $ 897354
Replacement tAXES. . ....eoieeerieiieiieree e eere et seee e e 203,500 - - - 203,500
Road and bridge taXeS ........ccocueuiererrerieerireenree s e esesieseene s e seeens 72,991 - - - 72,991
Sales AN USE TAXES .....ccvviieieeieeerieieeeeeeeaeeerese e e e reeestesasseseesstreeessenbeenns 3,795,179 - - - 3,795,179
INCOMEMAXES cuumsimissmmmnsemsimisis s ST 1,461,216 - - - 1,461,216
MOLOT FUE] TAXES susisusismicsssminsususamsvssanssiasiionsspvvsnisnssisnss ot wassssisswvisss - 488,937 - - 488,937
TelecomMMmUNICAtIONS TAXES ....ceercve i ocereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereesaeesermeensreenreseseeenreene 298,545 - - - 298,545
HOLEI/MOLE] TAXES ..vvveereeirarirsneecriesseesssiessaessssessmsssnssssnsssesoessssnssassessisenses - - - 176,452 176,452
U 1] TV ECANES i esmivossimenesioies st A et S e dowciss s brsihbees s vavamsaieseonEasies 754,956 - - - 754,956
VIdEO ZAMING tAXES....uceeueniecrieteteeieueereeeianemntenesees s ceseme e eseemaeseneesnee 131,676 - - - 131,676
(045 1=) g 701 21,607 - - - 21,607
INtergovermnmental FEVENUE ............cccoveereeieerieresiesresseaiesessssiseressssssssensses 612,265 - - - 612,265
INTEIESE INCOMMIE ... .vveveeeeerieseescseneeee et eseassaeseesensrasensnssnssnesssnnsmeseesesseneren 4,360 1,267 1,341 1,430 8,398
Charges fOr SEIVICES ......coviruereereieereeeereeeeseeeeeesesseeseseneeneeneeneeneenserereenes 256,751 - - 226,390 483,141
Fines and forfeitures. ........oouoeviiereie ettt ene s 115,543 - - - 115,543
Licenses and PermmitS........oueeieeurieieiiiieee oo esieree e 108,274 - - - 108,274
Refunds and reimbursements..........cccooeveevievieieieicvcieeeeceeeec e 183,701 - - - 183,701
IMISCEIIANEOUS. ..ottt eee et eeeee e seeeeseeeeeesen e st eesmesennane 63.801 - - - 63.801

TOta] REVENUES jyicinsasiiissanmssrrsssssiisnsass shmnssemizsssantsmssassnmmnsansdrempereas 8,797,321 490,204 7,523 582.488 9,877,536

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General Govenmment s e s 2,255,205 - 48,446 192,719 2,496,370
Public safety e mmmaiesmmmiasseng 3,263,015 - - 3,263,015
Public: Works wosssmammsas i e i S 1,037,067 413,432 - 64,864 1,515,363
Capital ProJeCtS sussusmssssssimsssisssssamsissiamssmsvss i - - 1,202,145 - 1,202,145

Debt service:
PrINCIPAL...c.oeeiricciet et ettt e s - - - 216,001 216,001
Interest - - - 16,536 16,536

Capital outlay suemmemsmmsasms s B T e 2,765,055 89.053 - 696,939 3,551,047

Total EXPenditures........cccueeeeieeieeeveicreecieeevereeeneesseseese s eeee e 9.320.342 502.485 1,250,591 1,187,059 12.260.477

(Continued)
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(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

City of Lincoln, lllinois
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Statement 4

Other Total
General Motor TIF Govermnmental Governmental
Corporate Fuel Tax Fund Funds Funds

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers iM.........coccoveieerensnnecnienenens
Operating ransfers (OUL) ..suzsssisesstssssmimmsstrin ftsatsimimmsmstarnrasisnsrmsabingasits
Common Wealth Edison Settlement..................
LG 711 3 0](0] 5= 10 At o N e B ol PR L er -
Bond proceeds.........ccocneieiominiinienece e
Bond premiums/Issuance Costs.........ccooiociunreaies

Total Other Financing Sources (USES) «...ccvoveeervermiueieconnisensensnseceas

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE ~BEGINNING ......ccocoviiiiniiinn

FUND BALANCE - ENDING...............

The accompanying notes are an integyal part of the financial statements.

(5_523.021)  (S__12281)  (S1.243,068)  (S_604,571)  (5_2.382.941)
................................... 545,669 . - 387,449 933,118
( 387,449) - . ( 545669)  ( 933,118)

.................................... 2 - . 404,894 404,894
27,444 " " 377,803 405,247

.................................... . " 2,285,000 - 2,285,000
.................................... . . 61,571 . 61.571
185.664 . 2,346,571 624,477 3,156,712

( 337357)  ( 12,281) 1,103,503 19,906 773,771

.................................... 3,295,388 736.104 975 1,153,994 5,186,461
$2,958,031 $_723.823 $1,104,478 $1.173,900 $.5,960,232
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
April 30,2015

Net changes in fund balances — Total Governmental FUnds ..........ccocovoiiiiiiinennninenineecce e § 773,771
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. The following is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current year:

CAPItA] OULIAYS ..ottt ettt ettt et ettt et retese s sbeesesaessenaensenen saenaesesensenes 3,566,159
DEPIECIALION. .....vevitiruieuirie sttt ettt ettt ettt e et b e seie sttt eb ettt s et eb e et nesrasae s sueesnenees ( 674,412)

The increase in OPEB obligation resulting from annual required contributions in excess of
the contributions do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore,
is not reported as expenditures in the funds ..........c..cooiiiiiiii ( 306,752)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental fiinds:

Net PENSION ODIGALION ...v.vvevriiiriieeiie ettt et et st ssee st te et ese s s essaessasssesensenenens ( 283,612)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, loans, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on
outstanding bonds, whereas in the governmental funds an interest expenditure is reported
when due. The following is the detail of the net effect of these differences in the treatment
of long-term debt and related items:

Repayment of G.O. bond payable ............ccceiiiiiiiiii e 159,000
Repayment 0f debt CErtifiCateS ........coiiimee ittt e e s r e ssaneene e 31,500
Repayment 0f NOteS PaYabIE..........cciiuruirueeiinieeee ettt 25,501
TIE-G.O; bonds ProCERAS.........cieiimeese e srvmimmsarmsemssse irsesuessss i samsmosssssesiianenesnsesoasesessninascsnis ( 2.285.000)
Change in net position of gOVErnmMeNntal ACIVILIES .........c..cuiivirnieeiiriieirteire et eesenes $1.006,155

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Statement 5
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
April 30,2015
Sewer
Fund
Assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash €QUIVAIENLS .........c...ooveiiiiiiiiici ettt a s s penenes $ 416,717
Restricted cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS............c..coiiiriiiiii e 272,505
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE. ..ottt ettt e e e ebe e e e et et s eneeaneenae e ereenreans 348,190
PREPAT XD OIS E Sk amrrm s st i s T Tt T TR 0+ o+ 0o 545 e T BT T T (50 OG0 s ¥R 7.053
TOtAl CUMTENE ASSELS .....oeeeeiieeeeeee ettt et e et ettt e et e e in et s e e emaeensaessesstes raesnas 1,044,465
CAPITAL ASSETS
SEWETAZE SYSEEIML ....comiiii ettt bttt st eb e be et e e et e st ebe e ebesenetane e 15,955,156
Less: Accumulated depreCiation ..........coccovcueuiciieiouerieiieceite sttt e s s asee et eanes ( _8.347.334)
INEL CAPIEAL ASSELS.c... eeveuieetieicteeieitetete ettt et et tes s bt eserebe - sete e st e en e eseeeesenneaeas 7.607.822
TOTALIASSETS . corrrcrmmeetesmetosees svnes eedus s fiv5e co seawes s « F7555 7505 555550 0ws saoun e 5 (50 FETTT T TA TG BT oo 8.652.287
Liabilities and Net Position
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABIC: v v coeimt o oo e R ewsame s s et Tt 5. 2 370 P S e TS S o+ 2l 5 0 e B o 950400 -
Notes and bonds payable — CUITENt POTLION .........cccceiiiiiiriieiiiiint et 525,000
Tota] CURTEnt LT abDUTtiOS .5 uavessisnsssiseseonsesaae s ase veovivnsssses F8ussssbtos a0 555 4annasss saanss's b e dosswsoo sssssssssssh 525,000
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Notes and bonds payable (less current POrtion) ..........ece. cveuerueriesirieeereesieeieinres cceereesessesereneanes 4,450,000
B ON PR M T I i b e 00 e TS T e T S i 55 e AT TSR s M i o oo 53 97.427
Total Long-Term LIabilities .........coc.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiierereceeee e st s s esenes 4,547.427
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..o ettt e e et enns s 5,072,427
NET POSITION
Net invesStment N CAPILAl ASSELS.......cccuirrrrirceeerieeirieisteseseresee st s steesaeiesesess e ese s e seseseesae e sesenes 2,535,395
O L 1= | R e TR e T WU 1,149,892
UNPESEIICEEA. ..ottt ettt ettt s et et st et et e et e ae e s as s eaceresseeteseseebsssessnsenseresmsseneeean ( 105.427)
TOTAL NET POSITION $_3,579.860

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Statement 6
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015
Sewer
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
CRAIEES fOr SEIVICES. ... .iitiiiieiseieie et ettt e st a e esae s e s e s ese e e saesane st entee s e sebeseeneassenas $2,889,050
O T I COMIE s v 57577 2o et v 5 S5 ST TS TS5 s e it s S - 54 PSRRI 3 (FBEEH 35 BHTE < oo 68.451
Total Operating REVENUES ..........c..cvuriiiiiit ettt s sbe st sae s eneaa s 2,957,501
OPERATING EXPENSES
PETSOMNE] SETVICE ..uivveriiiinriiianreisriinsessiesssessssuissmssssissastisssnesishetssesnssssssnsssassesssssssisdoressarsssnssnbiossnssasen 70,639
Contractual MAINEENANCE .........ccocverers veeies et et ee st e st et st eseseeeveesera et sasaesseessesseesensenteesabensaness oo 1,364,677
Supplies and MALEIIAIS .............ooi ettt ettt sttt eb et e e s e sae e sbe e s e enestene et 20,724
Other fees and CRATZES.........ccvviiirieie e e st e e sb e e re et e s s nens 67,902
DEPEECIATION. ... .r. oo o e s o SR E T st s omesmtnse v i 00 FEERT. SEETTAATAR e o5 s nemn e e mogsan e susiia s 432,719
Repairs and MAINEENANCE .............ccoovrueriiverieeteetes sieeeine s ereeestesissesteseseetesesesas sessssesseressesassensesssensas 46,510
OF fICE SUPPIES g o v o8- coTme e T2 00 oo P e s e o« BTSSR PSP T T i T2 4,239
ROSLATE. ... v Smeemmmmtons somems o oo eee S e sessss o« s /57 Ao SO R r TSN v e e o oot SEAE S S50 ST 12,421
TEIEPIOME ...t ettt bttt etttk ekt sae b bt ekt n et sttt ns 942
[SUBATIER.... .. . . eseswwses 5o e e a5 73R4 % i sl n sl « 757555 T84 AT R 7 A 42’ ol s A6 57 22,000
iy it S vt e T s« s e o e T N o s e S w5 ST et 219.952
Total Operating EXPENSES........covuiuiiiiiiiiiriiiinie sttt et cre e 2,262,725
Net Operating INCOME .........cvoiiviiiiieiececee et e e e e re st e sbeses esseese e sannees 694.776
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INtETESLINCOMEL. .. ... v drvrewrman st S i s+ s e « e o ees B T M w0 o B SO 0 0o 943
I S A (234 11 1151 T O O OSSPSRV ( 110,713)
OPErating trANSFETS I ......ccviveeieiriicietciet ettt ettt eb e e st e e st e e et nesenes 642,066
Operating tranSfErS (OUL)........c.viiuirieerveririeiii s iesieteee st eere ettt eatre st e s stesaesaa e sesesensereseresessansren sreres ( _642.066)
Total Nonoperating (EXPENSES) .........cecirueriivireeieiieieirrieerereeesrirereeisesieraeseesisessaasessasessensesssnes ( _109.770)
NET CHANGE INNET POSITION .......ocooiiiiniiiiiititne st ereesesieesvescsae e easns e ssseebese s eesesses e 585,006
NET POSITION - BEGINNING ..ottt sttt e e ess e sessesess sttt aneesreesesessasessesans 2.994.854
NET POSITION — ENDING.......ccocetreeeeserrecsanseesaesensssssnssonsesassans . $3.579.860

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, lllinois
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Collections frOM CUSTOIMETS ........c.ecuieiieiieiieciete sttt sttt aete senese e se e e seerens
O T N DTN w5757 555 75 e e« s o 05 o' B 5755w 55 P TS R Go S ¥ o s o g s o565
Payments fOr PErSOMNE] SEIVICES .......c.uiuiriiuirieiiieeiiieiins sttt ettt e eb bbbt aeeneeeenas
Payments fOr 800dS aNd SEIVICES. ......ccueeiiiiuiiririit ottt ettt

Net cash provided by Operating aCtivities.............uerveriiierieiinieeesieseie e e

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

O PEHATIRE LrANSTENS AP v asunimes seavvaris somwsasas sose sass s s s e s 1555 408’ 4345353554 57545 S RS54 Sy 2Ty mas st
Operating transfErs (OUL).......eeoiecueiieieree oot steteseste e se et st et a e st esaeseseesaeeseeaeemsesetassesessesaenes

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities. ............cc.ccoevvrvrveirrrcins e sireere e,

CASHFLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of Capital ASSELS ...........cocovioeiiiiieiieeie et e s
Principal paid 0n DONdS .......ccoiiiiiiiiie e s
Interest paid 0N DONAS.........ooiiuiiiie e e
Proceeds from General Obligation BoONds............cc.cccviiiiiiinriione e
BONA PEEMIUM .. cirors orvvsarsisnessss a5t s 55wstsiasnnnens s oo onssdsass dimede st e 55550 Suvs' 5960 s s AR TEAEE S 0 0 5T

Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities............c.cocoociviiereniiiiiieeeseee

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

INTEIEST INCOMIE ...ttt eete e et e st e et eeseessbesaneeesbesseetess e ssamasennesessantessaneeesereaaereesnnesannesneen

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.......ccccouvuniniuennne

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —BEGINNING .......ccocoiiiiiiie e

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ~ ENDING

Statement 7

Sewer

Fund

$2,859,492

68,451
70,639)

( 1.759.899)

1,097.405

642,066

( _642.066)

659,211)
5,871,460)

116,126)
5,285,000

102.840

( 1.258.957)

943
160,609)

849,831

$_689,222

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

OPETAtING INCOIMIE ...ttt ettt cb st cbeb et b bbbt s e eb e s s e e eata e e b e b e e bt ea e ebe et es e benens

Adjustment to reconcile operating income to cash provided by operating activities:

DOPIBEAIN. =< . 7. 0 0. - G 052 T s - s - S ol oo o W g VS

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable...........ooeieiiiiiieneicie e
(Increase) in Prepaid EXPENSES .......c..oveueiieeieireeieteeiese et eieree s e sesiesteese e st sesesseseaeaetieaneas
(Decrease) in acCoUNtS PAYADIE.......c..c.eoiirietiiiieirtcteiei ettt et et
(Decrease) in due to other funds.........ccccooviiiiiiiiiieci e

Net cash provided by Operating aCtiVItIES.........cocociieeeieieieciiieeec e e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

§ 694,776

432,719

22,505)
7,053)
532)

$1.097,405
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Statement 8
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
April 30, 2015

Total
Assets
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENES.............cceeeeiierieiiiiiiee ettt ettt s se s s e et e nas sassessassnaes $ 287,445
SRV 1 111= 115U 14,989,623
ACCTUEA INCOMIEE i cxve siseeosmsnisliossnsssstitsancnnes s e snsesoadees s o recnsiiratons fesss s TEAE o iE e SRS hn S5 e 55 he e samesammmgiass e ssmnns 63,928
TOTAL ASSETS.....coeetermerenennerncnsesnennesnnes . s S, $15.340.996
Liabilities and Net Position

LIABTELRIEESE ... ..ot 5 S s 3 S i gg T 5 7% o ol i e i o e . o RS o o S SR s 10 $ -
NET POSITION

Reserved for employee retirement COMMITMENES .........coeiervicieiinies it 15.340.996
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION. $15.340,996

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Statement 9
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
April 30,2015

Total
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
EMPIOYETr — PrOPEITY tAXES. ...ccvieiimirieriiiieiririetet ittt ettt st ebe et s st sttt enes § 878,214
Employer — replacement tAXES.... ......ovivetieteiiuiiniieiee ittt sa e ees 101,640
EMPIOYer — UtHIEY LAXES....cveiitereiiierienieien ettt e et eb e 323,553
EMPIOYEE ... . ccvresor svmveramsenigansmesssonganos sousasso s nssas e naas oot aFe s FomTTeswasms oo Ee e s e R o aER SRt 0o s s 258,290
INVESTIMENT INCOIME. .......veieieiieeee ettt e ettt cecr e et et e st e saese e esaese e e seses e s essesaenneaneansanseaenaas 498,279
Unrealized gains On INVESIMENTS..........cc.eoiiiiiiieeeiieeiete e eeieete st terecetesesenteseeaessasseres e ssessiresessessssens 235,121
TiOtal AAAIIOINSL..... .. ocon ewte e erms s St s ST £ s TR0 00 £ st s S ETETT TS eR TSN ST o G " 2.295.097
DEDUCTIONS
BENCHit PAYIETISL.. ... v -« soiess .75 caimoos oo TR RS2 st e e e S48 o /ST T ST T ST e 2,128,866
AdMINISIIALIVE EXPENSES......e.vcvriveererrereeienteiseeiereeieesesareatestessatessetessarestestesessessessensessasssasensssensesenns 64.789
TOtal DEAUCHIONS. ......eiueiii ettt e e et s et eereaees 2.193.655
NET INCREASE........erenaen. . 101,442
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS —
BEGINNING OF YEAR ..ottt ea ettt enenaes 15.239.554
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS -
END OF YEAR . $15.340.996

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2015

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Lincoln, Illinois (the "City") was incorporated on February 16, 1865. The City operates under a Council-Mayor
form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: general government, public safety and
public works.

The basic financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, as applied to government units (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting
policies are described below.

A. —Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity includes its governing board and all related organizations for which the City exercises oversight
responsibility.

The City has developed criteria to determine whether outside agencies with activities which benefit the citizens of the City
should be included within its financial reporting entity. The criteria includes, but is not limited to, whether the City exercises
oversight responsibility (which includes financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of
management, ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters), scope of and special financing
relationships.

The City has determined that no other outside agency meets the above criteria. In addition, the City is not aware of any entity
which would exercise such oversight on it in a manner in which the City would be considered its component unit.

B. — Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statements of net position and the statement of changes in net position)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segiment is offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Other items not property included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

20



City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2015

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

C. — Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are intended to finance. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. In determining when to recognize
intergovernmental revenue (grants and shared revenue), the legal and contractual requirements of the individual programs are
used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two bases for this revenue recognition. In one, monies are virtually
unrestricted as to the purpose of expenditure and are nearly irrevocable; therefore, these amounts are recognized as revenue at
the time of their receipt or earlier if they meet the criteria of availability. In the other, monies must be expended on the
specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenue is recognized based upon the
expenditures recorded.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter to pay current
liabilities. The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period, except for sales and telecommunication taxes collected within 90 days. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures relating to
compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, telecommunications taxes, licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeits,
miscellaneous revenues and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and
so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Personal property replacement taxes are considered to be
measurable when they have been collected and allocated by the state and are recognized as revenue at that time. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

D. — Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or accounts groups, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise
its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped into generic fund types and broad fiind categories.

The following fundtypes and account groups are used by the City:
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City of Lincoln, Tllinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2015

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

D. - Fund Accounting, (Continued)

Government Fund Types

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City are financed. The acquisition, use and
balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds.

General Corporate Fund

The General Corporate Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. It includes general administration as well
as the Special Fire Department, Police Task Force, DARE, Drug Forfeiture, DUI, and ERT Programs.

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund receives and expends the City's allocations of the highway user revenue money.
The amount available is allocated on a population basis, which is determined by the latest federal census.
Money allocated to this fund must be used for street construction, reconstruction, and maintenance.

The TIF District Fund is used to account for the activities relating to the Tax Increment Financing District.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special
assessments, expendable trust, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. The following Special Revenue Funds are maintained by the City:

The Revolving Loan Fund accounts for the Community Block Grant the City received. The Grant is
to be used for the purpose of providing financial assistance to local businesses as approved by the
Hlinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity.

DCEO Grant Fund accounts for the grant revenues for the downtown revitalization.

Internal Service Fund

The Equipment Rental Fund provides services to all funds on a fee basis.

Debt Service Funds

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, general
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Project Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of,
construction pro jects other than those for proprietary fund construction.
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City of Lincoln, {llinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

D. —Fund Accounting, (Continued)

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise Fund

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to that of private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing the
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability, or other purposes. Grants and interest income are considered as non-operating
revenues for proprietary funds.

The Sewer Operations and Maintenance Fund accounts for the operation of the sewer system for the City.

The Contingency and Depreciation Fund is required to accumulate money for replacements and repairs to the
system as may be necessary for the continued effective and efficient operation of the system.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments, or other funds. The following Fiduciary Funds are maintained by the City:

The Police Pension Fund receives contributions for participants of the plan from the City as well as the
pension fund participants currently employed by the City. The fund accounts for the assets held in trust to be
used for payment or retirement benefits.

The Firefighters' Pension Fund receives contributions for participants of the plan from the City as well as the
pension fund participants currently employed by the City. The fund accounts for the assets held in trustto be

used for payment or retirement benefits.

E. — Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on
the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly
giving value in retur, include grants and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from grants and donations is recognized
when received and eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
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City of Lincoln, linois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

F. — Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds. Transfers are reported as "Other
Financing Sources and Uses" in the governmental funds, as "Transfers In: by the recipient fund, and "Transfers Out" by the
disbursing fund.

On the governmental funds balance sheet, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified as
"interfund loan receivable/payables." These amounts are eliminated on the statement of net position.

G. — Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows for proprietary and similar fund types, the City considers highly liquid investments
to be cash equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Separate bank accounts arenot maintained for all City funds instead, certain funds maintain their uninvested cash balances in a
common checking account, with accounting records being maintained to show the portion of the common bank account

balance attributable to each participating fund.

H. — Capital Assets

General capital assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported on the
government-wide statement of net position but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the year.
The City maintains a capitalization threshold of $2.500. Improvements are capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset's life are not. Depreciation is computed on the
straight line basis over a period of from 5 to 40 years based on asset class.

. — Compensated Absences

The City does not record compensatory time for sick and vacation time.

J. — Intergovernmental Revenues

For governmental funds, intergovernmental revenues, such as contributions awarded on a non-reimbursement basis, are
recorded when eamed by the City.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

K. —Fund Balance/Net Position

Government-Wide Statements:
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets.

b. Restricted net position — Consist of net position with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external groups such as
creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net position — All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in
capital assets.”

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net position prior to the use of unrestricted net position when an expense is incurred
for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available.

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned. Nonspendable
fund balance cannot be spent because of its form. Restricted fund balance has limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, or
contributors or by enabling legislation or constitutional provisions. Committed fund balance is a limitation imposed by the
City Council through approval of resolutions. Committed fund balance can be assigned for other uses only by similar action
of the City Council. Assigned fund balances is a limitation imposed by a designee of the City Council. Unassigned fund
balance in the General Fund is the net resources in excess of what can be properly classified in one of the above four
categories.

Proprietary fund net position is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned)
amounts are available, it is the policy of the City to generally consider restricted amounts to have been reduced first. When an
expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used, it
is the policy of the city that committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned
amounts. In both instances, when a proposed expenditure is made with specific balances identified as the source of the
funding, that specific fund balance will be used.

L. —Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America that requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

25



City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTESTO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

M. — Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1. In April each year, the Finance Committee of the City Council submits to the City Council a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing that May 1.

2. A copy of the proposed budget is placed on file with the City Clerk and a date for public hearings is
announced.

3. The budget is passed by City Council.

4. The appropriation is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.

S. After adoption of the appropriation, further appropriations are prohibited. Transfers from one appropriation
of any fund to another appropriation of the same fund, not affecting the total amount appropriated, may be
made subject to City Council approval.

6. Formal budgetary integration is employed as management control device during the year for the General
Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, and the Debt Service Fund.

7. Budgets forthe General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds are adopted on a cash basis, which differs
from the basis used for the financial statements. Budgeted amounts shown in the financial statements have
been adjusted to reflect appropriation transfers between certain expenditure categories during the year; as a
result, the final budget presented differs firom that which was originally adopted.

N. -- Investments

Per Chapter 30, Act 235, Section 2 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, the City of Lincoln may invest any public funds (1) in
bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills, or other securities issued, which are guaranteed by the full faith and
credit of the United States of America as to principal and interest, or (2) in bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations of the
United States of America or its agencies, or (3) in interest-bearing savings accounts, certificates of deposit or time deposits, or
any other investments constituting direct obligations of any bank as defined by the Illinois Banking Act, or (4) in certain short-
term obligations of corporations organized in the United States limited to the terms set forth in Chapter 30, Act 235, Section 2
of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, or (5) in money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940,
provided that the portfolio of any such money market mutual fund is limited to obligations described in Chapter 30, Act 235,
Section 2 of the Illinois compiled Statutes. Investments may be made only in banks insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
corporation (FDIC), savings and loan associations insured by the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance corporation, or credit
unions charted under the laws of this state or the laws of the United States, provided the principal office of such credit union is
located within the State of [llinois and the accounts re insured. The City follows the same investment policy for the pension
trust funds. Investment balances, consisting of U.S. Treasury Notes and Bills, are stated at fair value. Assets of the different
funds are commingled for investment purposes, where permitted, and investment earnings are prorated back to various funds
when recognized as revenues. Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices at April 30, 2015. Non-
negotiable certificates of deposit are reported at cost.

O. — Transaction Between Funds

Transactions that would be treated as revenue, expenditures, or expenses if they involved organizations external to the
governmental unit are accounted for as revenue, expenditures, or expenses in the funds involved. Transactions which
constitute reimbursements of a fund for expenditures or expenses initially made from that fund which are properly applicable
to another fundare recorded as expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of the expenditure or
expense in the fund that is reimbursed.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

P. - Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all time deposits with a maturity of less than three months as
cash and cash equivalents.

Q. — Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are expensed in the year of issuance.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the current period.
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

R. —Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outtlows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to
liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

The following information gives significant dates on the property tax calendar of the City.

- The property tax lien date is January 1, 2013.
- The annual tax levy ordinance for 2013 taxes received during fiscal year 2015 was passed December 2013.
- The first installment o f property taxes is due to the County Collector on July 1 and the second installment is due to the

County Collector on September 1.
- Significant amounts of property taxes for 2013 were distributed to the City in July and September of 2014.

The 2014 taxes are intended to finance the 2016 fiscal year and are not considered available for current operations and are,
therefore, shown as unavailable revenue. The 2015 tax levy has not been recorded as a receivable at April 30, 2015.
Although the tax attached as a lien on property as of January 1, 2015, the tax will not be levied until December 2015, and,
accordingly, is not measurable at April 30, 2015.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2015

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Following is a reconciliation of deposits and investments as of April 30, 2015:

Primary
Government
Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,015,678
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 509,416
Investments 526.143
$_5,051,237
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 287,445
Investments 14,985,944
Total $15,273.389

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

A. — DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is therisk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits
may not be returned to it. The government does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of April 30,2015, $-0- of the
City’s bank balance of $5,179,821 (total book balance was $5,051,237) was exposed to custodial credit risk.

B.—INVESTMENTS

The Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET) is a governmental investment fund created under the Illinois Municipal
Code. IMET actively manages two investment funds for municipal treasurers. Official custodians of municipal funds, and
other public agencies in the State of Illinois. Official custodians of municipal fiinds, and other public agencies in the State of
linois. The funds are the IMET 1-3 Year Series and the IMET Convenience Series. The 1-3 Year Funds provides the
highest U.S. Government Securities’ rating.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in the market interest
rates. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. In accordance with the Pension Fund’s investment policy, the Pension Fund limits its exposure to interest rate
risk by structuring the portfolio so that investments will have maturities to have available sufficient cash for all operating

purposes.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is
measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Pension Fund’s
investment policy does not specifically address credit risk.

Custodial credit risk for investments in the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to the investment, the IMET
Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. IMET 1-3 Year Fund
invests exclusively in U.S. government backed securities and provides the Highest U.S. Government Securities’ rating. The
IMET Convenience Fund is a short-term money market instrument collateralized via FDIC insurance, the FHLB LOC
Program, and Government Securities at 110% on bank deposits.

Concentration of credit risk — At April 30, 2015, 100% of total investments were in Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund.

State statutes do not limit the percentage of investment in the Fund.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2015

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, (CONTINUED)

POLICE AND FIRE PENSION FUNDS

The City has adopted an investment policy to invest in instruments allowed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS). The statutes
allow pension funds to invest in the same securities as the City.

A. —DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of a bank’s failure, the Pension Fund’s
deposits may not be returned to them. To guard against credit risk for deposits with financial institutions the Pension Fund’s
investment policy requires all deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance be collateralized
and held at an independent third party institution in the name of the Police and Fire Pension Fund and evidenced by a written
collateral agreement.

B. - INVESTMENTS

Interest rate risk is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in the market interest
rates. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. In accordance with the Pension Fund’s investment policy, the Pension Fund limits its exposure to interest rate
risk by structuring the portfolio so that investments will have maturities to have available sufficient cash for all operating

purposes.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is
measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Pension Fund’s
investment policy does not specifically address credit risk.

Custodial credit risk for investments in the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to the investment, the
Pension Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. [llinois Funds
and the open ended mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk. The Pension Fund’s investment policy limits its
exposure to custodial credit risk for investments by requiring the purchase of certificates of deposit from financial institutions
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, or the National
Credit Union Administration.

Concentration of credit risk ~ The Pension Fund places no limit on the amount the Pension Fund may invest in any one issuer.
The Pension Fund’s investments consist of certificates of deposit, mutual funds, and corporate and municipal bonds.

29



City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2015

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED ASSETS

The City reports restricted cash in the Sewer Utility Fund due to the issuance of the IPEA notes in 2004 and in the Debt
Service Fund for issuance of General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds issued in 2013 and various funds in the General Fund
used for specific purposes.

SEWER UTILITY FUND

The note payable to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency requires funding by the utility of certain reserve accounts.
These reserve accounts are required to be segregated from other funds. The following accounts were so segregated at April
30, 2015:

Plant Contingency and Depreciation $112,450
Sewer and Drainage 160.055
Total $272.505

The following requirements of these accounts are outlined as follows;

Plant Contingency and Depreciation, established to accumulate funds for payment of the cost of extraordinary maintenance,
necessary repairs and replacements, or contingencies for which no other funds are available.

Sewer and Drainage, established to accumulate funds for the purpose of acquiring repairs, replacements or improvements for
which no other funds are available.

GENERAL FUND AND DEBT SERVICE FUND

The General Fund has various accountsthatare restricted for law enforcement and the fire department.

Police and Fire accounts $106,385

The Debt Service Fund is used to accumulate the taxes received for the payment of the bonds and used solely and only for
paying the bonds.

Debt Service Fund $.22.389
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2015

NOTE S - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ending April 30, 2015 consists of the following:

May 1, April 30,
Primary Government 2014 Additions Deletions 2015
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land § 11,344 $ 122,741 $ - § 134,085
Construction in progress,
not being depreciated 1.097.045 13.153 ( _1.097.045) 13,153
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1.108.389 135.894 ( _1.097.045) 147,238
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Streets/Traftic signals 4,218,797 3,619,633 - 7,838,430
Building and Improvements 8,133,775 671,090 - 8,804,865
Vehicles 4,445,074 94,141 - 4,539,215
Equipment 1.024.283 142.446 - 1.166.729
Total assets being depreciated 17,821,929 4.527.310 - 22.349.239
Total capital assets 18.930.318 4,663,204 ( _1.097.045) 22.496.477
Less total accumulated depreciation ( _9.973.841) ( 674.412) - ( 10.648.253)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 7.848.088 3.852.898 - 11,700,986
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $_ 8,956,477 $ 3,988,792 ($_1.097,045) $11,848.224
Depreciation expense for the current year is $674,412.
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in Progress $_ 243.861 $_ 544.500 $ - $_ 788361
Total capital assets not being depreciated 243,861 544,500 - 788.361
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Utility services 1,811,021 35,000 - 1,846,021
Building and improvements 7,255,077 48,783 - 7,303,860
Equipment 5,309,531 28,959 - 5,338,490
Vehicles 676.455 1.969 - 678.424
Total assets being depreciated 15.052.084 114711 - 15,166,795
Total capital assets 15,295,945 659.211 - 15.955.156
Less total accumulated depreciation ( _1914,615) ( __432.719) - ( _8.347.334)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 7.137.469 318.008) - 6.819.461
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $_7.381.330 $__226.492 ) - $_ 7,607,822

Depreciation expense for the current year is $432,719.
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April 30, 2015

NOTE S — CAPITAL ASSETS, (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government § 253,403
Public safety 110,791
Public works/transportation 310.218
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities §_ 674412

Business-type activities:

Sewer utility $_432.719

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of the long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended April 30, 2015:

May 1.2014 Additions Retirements  April 30, 2015

Governmental Funds:

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 $ 493,000 $ - (3 159,000) § 334,000
General Obligation Bond, Series 2014 — TIF - 2,285,000 - 2,285,000
Debt Certificates 31,500 E (  31,500) -
Note Payable — 2012 40,104 - ( 13,001) 27,103
Note Payable — Fire Truck 175.000 - ( 12,500) 162.500

$_739,604  $2285.000  (5.216001)  $2,808,603

Enterprise Funds:

Notes payable $5,561,460 $ - (%5,561,460) $ -
General Obligation Bond, Series 2014 - Sewer - 4,975,000 - 4,975,000

$5.561,460 $4.975.000 ($5,561,460) $4.975.000
Governmental Activities:

General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds, Series 2013 — The City issued $493,000 General Obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds,
Series 2013, for which the proceeds will be used to finance certain capital expenditures in and for the City (the “Project”) and
pay costs associated with the issuance of the bonds.

Future principal and interest payments on the general obligation (Limited Tax) Bonds are as follows:

Year Ending
April 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $171,000 $ 10,020 $181,020
2017 163.000 7.455 170.455

§334.000  $.17475  $351475
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City of Lincoln, Illinois

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2015

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT, (CONTINUED)

Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014 — The City issued bonds for the

purpose to improve streets, curbs, and sidewalks and rehabilitate, reconstruct, repair or remodel existing public and private
buildings within the Central Business Tax Increment Financing District. The City pays debt service expenditures from
increment property taxes collected within the Tax Increment Financing District.

The bonds are dated September 1, 2014 and are payable though December 1, 2034 with interest rates ranging from 3% to

4.75%.

Future principal and interest payments on the Tax Incrementing Financing General Obligation Bonds are as follows:

Principal

2016 $ 90,000
2017 90,000
2018 95,000
2019 95,000
2020 100,000
2021-2025 545,000
2026-2030 650,000
2031-2035 620,000
$2,285,000

Interest

3

108,209
86,568
83,868
81,168
78318

342,078

248,728

110,685

$1,139,622

Total

$ 198,209
176,568
178,868
176,168
178,318
887,078
898,728
730.685

$3.424,622

Note Payable — Fire Truck — The City has a loan agreement with the Illinois Finance Authority from the Fire Truck Loan
Program for the purchase of a fire truck. As of April 30, 2015 the City owed $162,500 to the Illinois Finance Authority. The
loan was dated April 2008 for $250,000 with zero percent interestand payments of $12,500 for 20 years ending November 1,

2028.

The following is a summary of changes in the loans for the year ended April 30, 2015:

Balance
April 30,
2014
Fire Truck Loan $175,000
Annual requirements are as follows:

2016 $ 12,500
2017 12,500
2018 12,500
2019 12,500
2020 12,500
2021-2025 62,500
2026-2028 37.500
Totals $162.500

Additions

$

Balance
April 30,
Payments 2015

$_12,500 $162,500
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April 30, 2015

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT, (CONTINUED)

Note Payable — The City borrowed $65,800 from lllini Bank on September 12, 2012 for purchase of fire equipment. The
interest rate is 2.75% and is due April 15,2017. The repayment schedule is as follows:

Interest Interest Fiscal
Date Principal Rate Due Total
10/15/2015 $ 6,636 2.75% $ 379
04/15/2016 6,729 2.75% 286 $ 14,030
10/15/2016 6,823 2.75% 192
04/15/2017 6.915 2.75% 97 14.027
Totals $.27,103 $_954 $_28,057

Business-Type Activities:

General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2014. — The City issued $4,975,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2014 for which the proceeds were used to payoff the IEPA Wastwater loan. The bonds are dated October 2014 and are
payable through January 1, 2023 with interest rates ranging from 2% to 3%. The repayment schedule is as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 525,000 $ 116,125 $ 641,125
2017 535,000 105,625 640,625
2018 545,000 94,925 639,925
2019 555,000 84,025 639,025
2020 565,000 72,925 637,925
2021-2023 2.250,000 155.100 2.405.100

$4.975.000  $_628,725  $3.603,725
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2015

NOTE 7 - LEASES

Operating Lease — The City entered into a S year operating lease agreement with John Deere Financial for a John Deere End

Loader. The lease payment are $8,359 per year for five years and the lease expires in 2018.

Minimum future lease payments under operating lease as of April 30,2015, are as follows:

2016 $ 8,359
2017 8,359
2018 8.359
Net minimum lease payments $_25.077

NOTE 8 — INTERFUND BALANCES

Interfund Receivables and Payables — There were no interfund receivables and payables to report at April 30, 2015.

Interfund Transfer — Interfund transfers consisted of the following at April 30, 2015:

Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund:
Nonma jor Governmental Funds $545,669 $387,449
Nonma jor Governmental Funds
General Fund 387.449 545,669
Total Interfund Transfers $933.118 $933,118

The purpose of the interfund transfers are as follows:

The transfers to and from the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds were for capital projects and
debt service expenditures.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2015

NOTE 9 —ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND PLAN

Plan Description. The City of Lincoln's (City) defined benefit pension plan for Regular employees provides retirement and
disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City's plan is
affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are
established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of [llinois. IMRF issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the City's Regular plan members are required to contribute 4.50 percent of their annual
covered salary. The statutes requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to
finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The City annual required contribution rate for calendar year 2014 was
26.63 percent. The City also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of
which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of
Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost. For calendar year ending December 31, 2014, the City's required contribution was $194,101. (If you
made an additional payment toward your unfunded amount, add this payment to your actual contributions and recalculate the
percentage of APC contributed).

THREE-YEAR TREND INFORMATION FOR THE REGULAR PLAN

Calendar Percentage

Year Annual Pension of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/14 194,101 100% $ 0
12/31/13 216,231 89% $ 22963 *
12/31/12 181,144 90% $ 17623 *

*If you utilized the phase-in contribution rate, the net pension obligation will have to be calculated.

The required contribution for 2014 was determined as part of the December 31, 2012, actuarial valuation using the entry age
normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2012, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of
return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a year, attributable to
inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4% to 10% per year depending on age and service,
attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the City's
Regular plan assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The City's Regular
plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 2012 is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll
on an open 30 year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Regular plan
was 80.82 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $3,238,336 and the actuarial value of assets was
$2,617,210, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $621,126. The covered payroll for calendar
year 2014 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $728,882 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered
payroll was 85 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets in increasing or decreasing
over timerelative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

36



City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2015

NOTE 10— IMRF PLAN — SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL

Plan Description. The City’s defined benefit pension plan for Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel employees provides
retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City
plan is affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions
are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be
obtained at on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the City's Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel plan members are required to contribute 7.5
percent of their annual covered salary. The statute requires the City to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member
contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The City contribution rate for calendar year 2014 used
by the employer was 13.75 percent of annual covered payroll. The City also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits
and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death
benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost. For calendar year ending December 31, 2014, the City's actual contributions for pension cost for the
Sherift's Law Enforcement Personnel plan were $3,334. (If you made an additional payment toward your unfunded amount,
add this payment to your actual contributions and recalculate the percentage of APC contributed).

THREE-YEAR TREND INFORMATION FOR THE SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL PLAN

Calendar Percentage

Year Annual Pension of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/14 3,334 100% $ *
12/31/13 62 100% $0 *
12/31/12 0 **%04 $0 *

*If you utilized the phase-in contribution rate, the net pension obligation will have to be calculated.

The required contribution for 2014 was determined as part of the December 31, 2012, actuarial valuation using the entry age
normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2012, included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of
return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a year, attributable to
inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4% to 10% per year depending on age and service,
attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the City's
Regular plan assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The City's Regular
plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31,2012 is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll
on an open 29 year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Sheriff's Law
Enforcement Personnel plan was 0.00 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $0 and the actuarial
value of assets was ($29,972), resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $29,972. The covered
payroll for calendar year 2014 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $0 and the ratio of the UAAL to
the covered payroll was 0.00 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2015

NOTE 11 — POLICE PENSION FUND

Plan Description: The Police Pension Fund is a single employer defined benefit pension plan to provide retirement, death and
disability benefits to police officers and their dependents. The plan issues an annual report to the Illinois Department of
Insurance; however, they do no issue their own stand-alone financial statements. The City accounts for the plan as a pension
trust fund. The fund is established and administered as prescribed by “Article 3. Police Pension Fund — Municipalities
500,000 and Under” of the Illinois Pension Code. Plan members’ contributions are recognized in the period in which the
contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made formal commitment to
provide the contributions.

The Plan offers two tiers of benefits as well as early retirement, death and disability and termination benefits as outlined
below:

NORMAL RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

Eligibility: Age 55 with at least 20 years of creditable service and no longer a police officer.

Bernefit: 50% of final salary is payable commencing at retirement for 20 years of service. An additional 2.5% of
final salary is added for each additional year of service in excess of 20 years of service (not to exceed 75% of
final salary). “Final salary” is the salary attached to rank held on the last day of services or for 1 year prior to
the last day, whichever is greater.

Annual Increase in Benefit: An officer will receive an initial increase of 1/12 of 3% for each month that has
elapsed since retirement. The initial increase date will be the later of the first day of the month following the
attainment of age 55, or the first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases of 3% of the
current pension amount (including prior increases) will be provided in each January thereafter.

Hired On or After January 1. 2011

FEligibility: Age 50 with at least 10 years of creditable service and no longer a police officer.

Berefit: 2.5% of final average salary for each year of service is payable at retirement (not to exceed 75% of final
average salary). “Final average salary” is determined by dividing the highest total salary over 96 consecutive
months of service in the last 120 months of service by the total number of months of service in the period.
Annual salary for this purpose will not exceed $106,800, indexed by the lesser of 3% or % of the CPI-U for the
12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1. The salary cap will not decrease.

Annual Increase in Berefit: The initial increase date will be January 1** following the later of the attainment of
age 60, or the first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent
January 1*. The first increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or %2 of
the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original
benefit.
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April 30,2015

NOTE 11 — POLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

EARLY RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

None

Hired On or After January 1. 2011

Eligibility: Age 50 with at least 10 years of creditable service and no longer a police officer.

Benefit: The normal retirement pension benefit reduced by 2 of 1% for each month that the police officer’s age is
under age 55.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1* following the later of the attainment of
age 60, or the first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent
January 1¥. The first increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or /2 of
the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original

benefit.
PENSION TO SURVIVORS

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

Death — Line of Duty

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary attached to the rank of the police officer on the last day of
service, payable immediately.

Death — Non-Duty

Current Pensioners (Including Disabled Pensioners). Surviving spouse to receive continuation of the pension.

Active Employee with 20+ Years of Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to the full pension earned by the police
officer at the time of death.

Active Employee with 10-20 Years of Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to 50% of the salary attached to the
rank of the police officer on the last day of service, payable immediately.

Annual Increase in Benefit: None.
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April 30, 2015

NOTE 11 - POLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

Hired On or After January 1, 2011

Death — Line of Duty

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary attached to the rank of the police officer on the last day of
service, payable immediately.

Death — Non-Duty

Current Pensioners (Including Disabled Pensioners), Active Employee with 20+ Years of Service, and Active

Employee with 10-20 Years of Service: Surviving spouse to receive 66 %% of the police officer’s earned
pension at the date of death.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1* after the attainment of age 60 by the
recipient of the survivor’s pension. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January I*. The first
increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or 'z of the CPI-U for the 12

months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original survivor’s benefit
amount.

TERMINATION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

Eligibility: At least 8 years but less than 20 years of creditable service.

Benefit: 2.5% of final salary for each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. “Final salary” is based on

the greater of salary during the last year of service prior to termination of employment or the pay rate for the
police officer at termination of employment.

Annual Increase in Benefit: An officer will receive an initial increase of 3% on the first anniversary of the date of

start of payments. Subsequent increases of 3% of the current pension amount will be provided in each January
thereafter.

Hired On or After January 1. 2011

Eligibility: Atleast 10 years but less than 20 years of creditable service.

Benefit: 2.5% of final salary for each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. “Final salary” is based on
the greater of salary during the last year of service prior to termination of employment or the pay rate for the
police officer at termination of employment. Annual salary for this purpose will not exceed $106,800, indexed

by the lesser of 3% or %2 of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November
1. The salary cap will not decrease.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1* following the first payment.
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1°'. The first increase and subsequent increases
will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or /2 of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September
preceding each November 1, applied to the original benefit amount.
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NOTE 11 - POLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

DISABILITY BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1. 2011

Eligibility: Disability (duty or non-duty).

Benefit: A police officer who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greatest of
65% of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at the time of disability.
For a non-duty disability, the police officer is entitled to 50% of final salary. “Final salary” is based on the pay
rate for the police officer on the last day of service.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January I** following the attainment of age 60.
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1*'. The first increase is 3% of the original benefit
for each full year that has passed since the pension began. Subsequent increases will be the 3% of the original
pension benefit amount.

Hired On or After January 1, 2011

Eligibility: Disability (duty or non-duty).

Benefit: A police officer who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greater of
65% of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at the time of disability.
For a non-duty disability, the police officer is entitled to 50% of final salary. “Final salary” is based on the pay
rate for the police officer on the last day of service.

Annual Increase in Berefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1* following the attainment of age 60.
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1°'. The first increase and subsequent increases
will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or ¥4 of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September
preceding each November 1, applied to the original benefit amount.

Funding Policy: Covered employees are required to contribute 9.991% of their base salary. The City’s annual contribution to
the plan is provided by property tax levy. These taxes are required to be of an amount necessary to finance the plan as
actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. The current funding policy for the pension fund is to be 100% funded on an
actuarial basis by year 2040. For the year ended April 30, 2015, the City’s contribution was 44 percent of covered payroll.
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April 30,2015

NOTE 11-POLICE PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

Annual Pension Costs and Net Pension Asset. The City’s annual pension cost and net pension asset to the Police Pension Plan
for the most current year (April 30, 2015) were as follows:

Annual required contributions $738,719
Interest on net pension asset 21,902
Adjustments to annual required contribution ( _17.035)
Annual pension cost 743,586
Annual contributions made 639.929
Change in net pension obligation 103,657
Net pension obligation (asset), beginning of year 312.892
Net pension obligation (asset), end of year $416.,549

THREE-YEAR TREND IN ORMATION FOR THE POLICE PENSION PLAN

Calendar Percentage
Year Annual Pension of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
04/30/15 $743,586 86.05% $416,519
04/30/14 $699,798 81.76% $312,892
04/30/13 $607,045 80.55% $185,803
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NOTE 12 - FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

Plan Description: The Firefighters' Pension Fund is a single employer defined benefit pension plan to provide retirement,
death and disability benefits to firemen and their dependents. The plan issues an annual report to the Illinois Department of
Insurance; however, they do no issue their own stand-alone financial statements. The City accounts for the plan as a pension
trust fund. The fund is established and administered as prescribed by “Article 4. Firefighters’ Pension Fund — Municipalities
500,000 and Under” of the Illinois Pension Code. Plan members’ contributions are recognized in the period in which the
contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made formal commitment to
provide the contributions.

The Plan offers two tiers of benefits as well as early retirement, death and disability and tenmination benefits as outlined
below:

NORMAL RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

Eligibility: Age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service and no longer a firefighter.

Benefit: 50% of final salary is payable commencing at retirement for 20 years of service. An additional 2.5% of
final salary is added for each additional year of service (prorated monthly) in excess of 20 years of service (not
to exceed 75% of final salary). “Final salary” is based on the pay rate for the firefighter at retirement.

Annual Increase in Benefit: A firefighter is entitled to an initial pension increase equal to 1/12 of 3% of the
original monthly beneft for each full month that has passed since the pension began. The initial increase date
will be the later of the first day of the month following the attainment of age 55, or the first anniversary of the
date of retirement. Subsequent increases of 3% of the current pension amount will be provided in each January
thereafter.

Hired After January 1, 2011

Eligibility: Age 50 with at least 10 years of creditable service and no longer a firefighter.

Benefit. 2.5% of final average salary for each year of service is payable at retirement (not to exceed 75% of final
average salary). “Final average salary” is determined by dividing the highest total salary over 96 consecutive
months of service in the last 120 months of service by the total number of months of service in the period.
Annual salary for this purpose will not exceed $106,800, indexed by the lesser of 3% or Y of the CP1-U for the
12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1. The salary cap will not decrease.

Annual Increase in Benefit. The initial increase date will be January 1*' following the attainment of age 60, or the
first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January [*. The
first increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or ¥z of the CPI-U for the
12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount.
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NOTE 12 — FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

EARLY RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January [, 2011

None

Hired Priorto January 1. 2011

Eligibiliry: Age 50 with at least | 0 years of creditable service and no longer a firefighter.

Benefit. The normal retirement pension benefit reduced by % of 1% for each month that the firefighter’s age is
under age 55.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1** following the attainment of age 60, or
the first anniversary of the date of retirement. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1%,
The first increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or %2 of the CPI-U for
the 12 months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount.

PENSION TO SURVIVORS

Hired Prior to January 1. 2011

Death — Line of Duty

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary attached to the rank of the firefighter on the last day of service,
payable immediately.

Death — Non-Duty

Current Pensioners (Including Disabled Pensioners): Surviving spouse to receive continuation of the pension at
the time of death or 54% of pensionable salary at the time pension began, if greater.

Active Employee with 20+ Years of Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to the full pension eamed by the
firefighter at the time of death, or 54% of the pensionable salary at death if greater.

Active Employee with 10-20 Years of Service: Surviving spouse is entitled to 54% of the salary attached to the
rank of the firefighter on the last day of service, payable immediately.

Annual Increase in Benefit: None.
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NOTE 12 -- FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

Hired On or After January 1, 2011

Death — Line of Duty

Surviving spouse is entitled to 100% of the salary attached to the rank of the firefighter on the last day of service,
payable immediately.

Death — Non-Duty

Current Pensioners (Including Disabled Pensioners), Active Employee with 20+ Years of Service, and Active
Employee with 10-20 Years of Service: Surviving spouse to receive 66 %% of the firefighter’s earned pension
at the date of death.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1% after the attainment of age 60 by the
recipient of the survivor’s pension. Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1%, The first
increase and subsequent increases will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or ¥4 of the CPI-U for the 12
months ending with the September preceding each November 1, applied to the original survivor’s pension
amount.

TERMINATION BENEFIT

Hired Prior to January 1, 2011

Eligibility: At least 10 years but less than 20 years of creditable service.

Benefit: An accrual factor times final salary for each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. “Accrual
Factor” is a factor of 1.5% at 10 years of service, increasing ratably up to 2.4% at 19 years of service. “Final
salary” is based on the pay rate for the firefighter on the date of separation.

Annual Increase in Benefit: A firefighter will receive an initial increase of 3% on the first anniversary of the date
of start of payments. Subsequent increases of 3% of the current pension amount will be provided in each
January thereafter.

Hired On or After January 1, 2011

FEligibility: At least 10 years but less than 20 years of creditable service.

Benefit: An accrual factor times final salary for each year of service is payable beginning at age 60. “Accrual
Factor” is a factor of 1/5% at 10 years of service, increasing ratably up to 2.4% at 19 years of service. “Final
salary” is based on the greater of salary during the last year of service prior to termination of employment or the
pay rate for the firefighter at termination of employment. Annual salary for this purpose will not exceed
$106,800, indexed by the lesser 0f3% or Y of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September
preceding each November 1. The salary cap will not decrease.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1% following the first payment.
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1%. The firstincrease and subsequent increases
will be the lesser of 3% of the original benefit or /2 of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September
preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount.
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NOTE 12 — FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

DISABILITY BENEFIT

Hired Priorto January 1, 2011

FEligibility: Disability (duty; or non-duty with 7 years of service).

Benefir: A firefighter who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greatest of 65%
of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at the time of disability. For a
non-duty disability, the firefighter is entitled to 50% of final salary. “Final salary” is based on the pay rate for
the firefighter at retirement.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1°' following the attainment of age 60.
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1. The firstincrease is 3% of the original benefit

foreach full year that has passed since the pension began. Subsequent increases are 3% of the original pension
benefit amount.

Hired On or After January 1, 2011

FEligibiliry: Disability (duty; or non-duty with 7 years of service).

Benefit: A firefighter who becomes disabled on duty is entitled to receive a pension equal to the greater of 65%
of final salary or the pension they would have been entitled to upon retirement at the time of disability. Fora
non-duty disability, the firefighter is entitled to 50% of final salary. “Final salary” is based on the pay rate for
the firefighter at last day of service.

Annual Increase in Benefit: The initial increase date will be the January 1* following the attainment of age 60.
Subsequent increases will occur on each subsequent January 1%. The first increase and subsequent increases
will be the lesser 0f 3% of the original benefit or 2 of the CPI-U for the 12 months ending with the September
preceding each November 1, applied to the original pension amount.

Funding Policy: Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary. The City’s annual contribution to
the plan is provided by property tax levy. These taxes are required to be of an amount necessary to finance the plan as
actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. The current funding policy for the pension fund is to be 100% funded on an
actuarial basis by year 2040. For the year ended April 30, 2015, the City’s contribution was 57 percent of covered payroll.
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NOTE 12 — FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND, (CONTINUED)

Annual Pension Costs and Net Pension Asset. The City’s annual pension cost and net pension asset to the Firefighters’
Pension Plan for the most current year (April 30,201 5) were as follows:

Annual required contributions $785,722
Interest on net pension asset 46,905
Adjustments to annual required contribution ( _36.481)
Annual pension cost 796,146
Annual contributions made 616.191
Change in net pension obligation 179,955
Net pension obligation (asset), beginning of year 670,072
Net pension obligation (asset), end of year $850,027

THREE-YEAR TREND INFORMATION FOR THE FIREFIGHTERS’ PENSION PLAN

Calendar Percentage
Year Annual Pension of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
04/30/15 $796,146 77.40% $850,027
04/30/14 $795,417 66.79% $670,072

04/30/13 $676,296 65.57% $405,919



City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2015
NOTE 13 - POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

PLAN DESCRIPTION

In addition to providing pension benefits described, the City provides certain post-retirement benefits to full-time employees
meeting certain requirements. The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer contributions are governed
by the City and can be amended by the City. The plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, and an irrevocable trust has not
been established to account for the plan. The plan does not issue a separate report.

BENEFITS PROVIDED

The following benefits are provided to newly retired fulll-time employees of the City of Lincoln:
20 years of service with the City and age 55 = City pays 50% of employee-only portion of health insurance.

20 years of service with the City and not reached age 55 = City pays the health insurance premium until age 55
reached, then 50% of'the premium.

MEMBERSHIP

At May 1, 2014 (latest information available), membership consisted of:

Retirees and dependents currently receiving benefits 29
Active vested plan members 4
Active not fully eligible to retire 54
TOTAL 87
Participating employers 1

FUNDING POLICY

The City negotiates the contribution percentages between the City and employees through union and personnel policy. The
City contributes the cost of providing the benefits to retirees via the insured plan (pay as you go). For the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2015, the City contributed $252,645.
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NOTE 13 - POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS, (CONTINUED)

ANNUAL OPEB COSTS AND NET OPEB OBLIGATION

The City had an actuarial valuation performed for the plan as of May 1, 2014 to determine the Employer’s annual required
contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year ended April 30,2015. The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB
cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year 2015 were as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of
Year OPEB Employer Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ending Cost Contributions Cost Contributed Obligation
April 30, 2015 $559,397 $252,645 45% $306,752

The net OPEB obligation (NOPEBO) at April 30, 2015 was calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 559,397
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -

Annual OPEB Cost 559,397
Contributions made ( _252.645)
Change in net OPEB obligation 306,752

Net OPEB obligation beginning of year -
NET OPEB OBLIGATION END OF YEAR $_306,752

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plan as of May 1, 2013 (latest information available), was as
follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $4,867,764
Actuarial value of plan assets =
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $4,867,764
Fundedratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $3,334,750
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 146%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and
the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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NOTE 13 — POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS, (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the May 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the entry-age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a
4.00% investment rate of return and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 4.9% - 8.3% with an ultimate healthcare inflation
rate of 3.0%. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the City has not advance funded its obligation. The plan’s
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The
remaining amortization period at April 30, 2015, was 30 years.

NOTE 14 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PAYABLE

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.
The Plan is administered by Nationwide Retirement Solution, Inc. and VALIC. The plan, available to all full-time City
employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income
attributable to these amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for the exclusive benefits of participants and other
beneficiaries. As a result, the deferred compensation investments are not reported in the City's financial statements as an

agency fund.

NOTE 1S - INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is self-insured for unemployment compensation. The City reimburses the State for unemployment compensation
claims paid to former employees.

The City is also exposed to various risks including but not limited to losses firom workers' compensation, general liability and
property damage. Such risks are managed through the purchase of insurance contracts.

Payments are made from the Liability Insurance fund to provide the payment of workers' compensation insurance, liability
insurance and auto insurance.

Settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 16— COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of April 30, 2015, the City has matters of pending litigation which are being handled by the City's liability insurance carrier
through legal counsel designated by them. In addition, there are also pending workman's compensation claims against the
City, all of which are being handled by the City's workman's compensation insurance carrier or legal counsel designated by
them.

Pursuant to the four collective bargaining agreements the City has with various bargaining units, the City does have an

ongoing responsibility to provide individual health insurance coverage to retired members. The liability of these post-
retirement benefits has not been determined at this time.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 1
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
Required Supplemental Information

Employer Number 03364R
Regular Plan
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (ALL) ALL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets —-Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/e)
12/31/14 2,617,210 3,238,336 621,126 80.82% 728,882 85.22%
12/31/13 2,168,780 2,942,826 774,046 73.70% 735,979 105.17%
12/31/12 1,644,575 2,941,992 1,297,417 55.90% 702,109 184.79%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2014 is $3,426,320. On a market basis, the funded ratio would be
105.80%.

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service credit with City of Lincoln. They do
not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial accrued liability for retirees is 100% funded.
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Actuarial
Valuation
Date

12/31/14
12/31/13
12/31/12

City of Lincoln, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS -
Required Supplemental Information
Employer Number 03364R
Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued
Value of Liability (ALL) ALL Funded
Assets ---Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio
(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b)
( 29,972) 0 29,972 0%
( 31,163) 0 31,163 0%
( 31,452) 0 31,452 0%

Schedule 2
UAAL asa

Covered Percentage of
Payroll Covered Payroll

(©) ((b-a)/c)

0 0%

0 0%

0 N/A

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2014 is ($24,268). On a market basis, the funded ratio would be

0.00%.

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service credit with City of Lincoln. They do
not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial accrued liability for retirees is 100% funded.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 3
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS —
Required Supplemental Inforimation
Police Pension Fund

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued UAAL asa
Actuarial Value of Liability (ALL) ALL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets -—-Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) _ (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

04/30/14 9,807,893 19,979,216 10,169,323 49.10% 1,470,635 691.49%
04/30/13 9,651,264 18,997,827 9,346,563 50.80% 1,495,263 625.08%
04/30/12 9,551,057 18,414,856 8,863,799 51.87% 1,286,495 388.99%
04/30/11 9,388,373 17,428,306 8,039,933 53.87% 1,231,299 652.96%
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 4
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS ~
Required Supplemental Information
Firefighters’ Pension Fund

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Value of Liability (ALL) ALL Funded Covered Percentage of

Valuation Assets ---Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) () ((b-a)/c)
04/30/14 6,015,546 16,790,443 10,774,897 35.83% 1,067,946 1008.94%
04/30/13 6,106,373 17,250,931 11,144,558 35.40% 1,039,058 1072.56%
04/30/12 6,275,494 16,241,367 9,965,873 38.64% 988,305 1008.38%
04/30/11 6,606,546 15,653,640 9,047,094 42.20% 911,777 992.25%
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Actuarial
Valuation
Date

04/30/15

City of Lincoln, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
Required Supplemental Information
Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan

Schedule 5

N/A  Information is not available as an actuarial valuation was not performed.

The Village implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015.

Information for prior years is not available.

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued UAAL asa
Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Assets ---Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
— (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
N/A 4,867,764 4,867,764 0.00% 3,334,750 146%
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Fiscal
Year

Ending
2015

City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 6
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Required Supplemental information
Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan

Annual
Required Net
Employer Contribution Percentage OPEB
Contributions (ARC) Contributed Obligation
$252,645 $559,397 45% $306,752

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015.
Information for prior years is not available.
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City of Lincoln, [llinois Schedule 7
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year
Amounts Actual
REVENUES:
Taxes:
PrOPEILY tAXES ...ttt sttt $ 1,605,041 $§ 712,956
INE OIMIETANES ... rrmevmmm. e e i s s oo oo rooE ST T o s o s S o048 T TS S e e 1,346,261 1,461,216
SAlES ANA USELAXES .....eceveeveeeeeiericeie ettt cteeete e et eee ettt e e eeae e s e et ereeeeneenne 3,807,126 3,795,179
TelecCOMMUNICAIONS TAX.........cueeueereerereeeeeeteeeeeie et ete et eeeteeeee e ee e seeseeeenesaean 411,370 298,545
Replacement taXes. .........ccceueirieienirieniece e BBy -+ B 329,284 203,500
R0ad and Drid@E tAXES .....covevieiiieiicieeeie ettt st 75,600 72,991
UHEY tAXES..vvieieeeereiesieteie ettt ae ettt s sess et se s se s te s s ese e ssene s esennns 1,000,000 754,956
VIdEO AMINEZ LAXES ....ceeeuemieieieieiieteieeristetet ettt sttt sttt ss et 70,000 131,676
OTHErTAXES. ... ..oy s 5o T e s oo s o TR e s g PSS T T 2,100 1,989
FILR AKX .....otnveesiosenenssiestitan s aasanancasaons 554 65500 a5 30i880nenevansonssossonsssalsssss 655 leensessansnsnnss - 19.617
TOtAlTAXES. . crovsrormsmsssmssems b s oo v s Trme s oomots e ST oo s o T SETTe e on o s e s 038 8.646,782 7.452.625
Intergovernmental FEVENUE..........cccoueiuiirienieteeeceee sttt - 612.265
Charges For Services:
FranCRISE fEES .....ooviieiieiitiee ettt ettt aa e ae e s aasanea 190,000 178,911
Fire protection reimburSEMENt ..........cccoceueruerieueriesirene et 4,400 5,969
AdMINISrative TEES....c..veeieeietieeiieteecee et 45,000 30,000
Birth and death CertifiCates ............evuvirieiiesieceii et 11,100 16,294
Licenses and PermitS ..........oooviviiiiieoieeiie ettt et ere s 122,460 108,274
School ReSOUrCE OffICET......c..ooieuieiieeiceeeeeee et 25,890 25,575
Total charges for SEIVICES ......coueviririiieieieieriereer ettt 398.850 365.023
Fines and Forfeitures:
TraffIC FINES .ottt 75,000 71,896
OLhET fINES ...ttt ettt et e s et ee s e tesnebe e 54,960 43.647
Total fines and fOrfeitures.............ccoocoeiviiieiie e 129.960 115,543
Miscellaneous:
MISCEIANEOUS ......oecviiect et ettt et ee s ss e e e s eaeseaesenes 20,300 46,906
DONALIONS. .....eveeveeeeeeeeete ettt ettt et ee et eae e eae et e eaeeaeeaeeate et esese et eseseenseanens - 16,895
ReStitution/REINDUISEIMENTS .....oeeivee ettt e et e e e e e s et eeeteeeereeeeaee e = 183,701
Total MiSCEIIANEOUS..........ccveeeieieeeieie ettt 20,300 247,502
I TEFES I NGO . . -ooe . - st Tmgs ST s e e Ao o« T ETE P Ao o S e 5 T T TR 7.300 4,360
(continued)

E



City of Lincoln, Illinois
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

REVENUES (Continued):
Other Financing Sources:

Grant Proceeds
Transfers in....

Total Other Financing SOUrCes...........cooovvieiciniiiece i

Public Safety:

TUTAL BEVIERIUES. cveovrvomos .15 sssm05 08 52t o 85315508 Wares 516 e owsasonsie @ a7 s G aaas

EXPENDITURES:

Fire Department:
PEISONNE] SEIVICES....eeiieeeeeeeeeee et ete et e e e e et et e et s s aeesssresessssneasesstessaans

Supplies...

Repairs and maintenance. ..........ccceoeeiveirireiennii et
Conaciual SOMViCeS sxrm e mmusegi-suz .- ocmcts-re - oo e TV T AT g e s
Other services and Charges ..........coccvrueeririecenerres e
Capital QULIAY .....ceeeiieiccere s

Total Fire Department..........ccccoovioriririeceeceeec et

Police Department:
PErSONMNE] SEIVICES ... ..eveieeieeetieeeeee ettt ettt eee ettt et e s e e e st s s saneees

Supplies...

Repairs and Maintenance ............oeericierieeiiicreneiesecsie sttt
CONLFACTUAL SETVICES .....ueeeeneieicieieetrteiesieiet ettt sttt sttt e st sbe e
Other services and Charges ..........cccceverreeerenieeienteiestee et
Capital OUIAY ..o

Total Police Department.............cccocouvicueeninniinieicneeeeecevene e

ESDA:

Repairs and Maintenance............ccceeerueueuenieierieserieeieete ettt sttt

Crossing Guard:
PErSONME] SEIVICES. ...ttt et e et e e e et ae e e eeteeeaeeeesseans

Public Benefits:
ANIMal CONTTOI CONITACT .......vieieeiieeeie ettt e et e e see et eseaeeseneans

Total Public Safety........cccoieeeeiriieieeee e

Schedule 7

Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year
Amounts Actual
$ 59,529 27,446
- 545.669
59,529 573,115
9,262,721 9.370.433
1,202,825 1,209,767
32,850 43,501
53,000 40,922
3,500 2,180
24,700 41,450
47.500 43,487
1.364.375 1,.381.307
1,643,018 1,620,433
100,600 86,617
30,500 42,169
19,000 30,740
24,100 65,850
1.817.218 1,845.809
5.000 2.186
4.000 6.726
40,793 40,742
3.231.386 3.276.770
(continued)

58



City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 7
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
GENERALFUND
Forthe Year Ended April 30,2015

Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year
Amounts Actual
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Public Works:
Zoning:
PerSONNEl SEIVICES.........oeceeeceeeie ettt ettt ettt $ 98,365 $ 96,419
SUBPUBS:. . coaoaeemsscs s awmsrme -6 v S BB T e By o gt - cim - s s T 3,800 3,260
Repairs and aintenance ..............ccceeeueeerienieueineineceeeeeeieee e seee e 800 683
Other services and Charges ..........c.coeeerueeeerriesieierceeicei e 29.350 24.649
TOtal ZONING.....covieeieriiiieiieeet ettt 132,315 125,011
Public Grounds and Buildings:
SUPPHES ...ttt bt 500 530
Repairs and Maintenance..............coueevureuenierenireeniee e et 2,500 6,250
CONraCtUAl SETVICES......ecveeiuieeieeieeie ettt e e et nnean 49,628 47,719
U BTHEIES cv vttt ettt ettt ettt s e et s e et e s e aeenssatessnseneesaneeeenesaan 12,000 8,072
Other services and Charges .........ccocueeeerieeriiieceeceeereceie e 100 39
Total Public Grounds and Buildings...........ccccoevvviriiinninenenecece, 64.728 62.610
Streets and Alleys:
PEerSONNEl SETVICES......covieeeeteeeeectceeeeete ettt e te e e ettt e sa e eaeesesaeeveeaeeeaens 322,248 337,250
SUPPHES....eee ettt 118,750 84,948
Repairs and maintenance.............coooovoeeueeeieeiieceiriie et 43,000 42,532
CONITACIUAL SETVICES .......eoieeeviieeeeeeteeeecteeetee e sterer e v e e e s eeaesseesaseseeesneeeans 35,500 33,195
Other services and Charges ..........cocccceerierieireisieesie et 8.800 6.506
Total Streets and AllRYS ......cccvevveuieieieeieeee e s _ 528.298 504431
Forestry Fund:
PErSONNE] SEIVICES. ....veieeeeieeeiceeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt st et ev e s et e st s s eveseneeeans 56,867 46,392
SUPPHES ...t - -
Repairs and MainteNanCe............cc.eveveeveveeieveeeieeeeeeeretese s ceet e s eve s 23,000 3,000
Other services and Charges ..........cccecvevrreiteieniteceniniee e 13,000 93.967
Total Forestry FUNd........cccoooveieiiiice e 92.867 143.359
Total PUbliIc WOTKS c..coviieiiieieiece e 818,208 835411
(continued)
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City of Lincoln, Ilinois Schedule 7
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30,2015

Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year
Amounts Actual
EXPENDIT URES (Continued):
General Govemment:
City Clerk's Office:
PEISOMNE] SETVICES ... .viivtveeviesetetee ettt e e et e st et ssssestesesesessesesessnresnresnreen $ 76,600 76,481
SUPPIES. ...t sttt e b ettt rer b e eben 8,500 5,316
Repairs and Maintenance..........occoceeveerreriesieneereseesreseesenesee e sneeseesensessene 2,500 1,509
CONTACLUAN SEIVICES ..-veeevccvrreetee et ceesereeste st e s etreenaessrbeesreesbeesreesareeareseaneesien 6,000 6,000
Other services and Charges ...........ccoeveeiinniniciniiie s 21,100 22,260
Total City Clerk's OffiCe.......ooiriimiririieeie e 114,700 111,566
City Administrator:
PErSONNEL SEIVICES........cvivirieriieteeirirteeeie sttt ettt et 88,800 57,991
STPPES: e 0655, rodss e e Mmoo« ve o555 o80T 0000 FEHTEHAE TR R e v e g o 500 633
Other services and Charges ............ccovevierienerereennce e 12,850 11.304
Total City Administrator’s Office.............covvvmeiinieciivirenecere e 102,150 69.928
Merit Commission:
PErSONNE] SEIVICES......oicvviitiierieiitiiteticiecce ettt s s et bessre st 1,800 2,114
Other services and Charges .............coocveeirieciencesseee et 5.500 3.880
Total Merit COMMUSSION .......iververiciireirtiriireerie s saeerie s seesreresresancresens 7.300 5.994
Mayor's Office:
PErSONNE] SEIVICES...ccviivrerenrrrerinreeirrersreesreressesressressreesssessreeaseessressresssseossessnens 55,000 51,187
SUPPIES ocs Tormaes T e v o 4 BRI % % =l ™ PR i 1 47755 500 365
Other services and Charges .........cccouveecveerieieieeictiiree s see s 40.129 30.645
Total Mayor's OffICe.......ccouvviiiiviiciiee e e 95.629 82,197
Audit:
ANTATHECEE....... oo v e 5ot o, oo T s i se e mereame s o i i « o 072S0 5 00 vgue oot o, 19.250 22,750
Legal:
CONLrACUAL SETVICES .....veveeviverierresieeiesteeeieteseestseseeee e st ebebes et seene 85.500 85.693
(continued)
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 7
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year
Amounts Actual
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
General Government (Continued):
Contingent:
UNEIMPIOYIMENL ..ottt $ - 3 16,301
CoNtractual SETVICES.........ccueivieuiitiirecicieecietiete e e ere e e e et ese e e e e s eaeese s ereaseseeas 213,856 212,657
Special project eXPenditures.............ceveorueriririricuiriieieereees e 60,019 58,016
Sales taxX rebates.........covueeiieeiiiiieieeceec e - 50,000
Other services and Charges ...........coccceveeeieieiiiieeeeee e - 2.000
Total CONtINGENE ......covieieiieierieee e 273,875 338.974
Engineering:
CONMACLUAL SETVICES .....vevevirierietiteeteeteeeteeteeeeeteeeteeeteee e teeteseeeeseeseeseseessessens 8.000 8.433
IMRF:
Social security CONtTIBULION ... ...cccouiieiiiriiiiiiceeeeeeeee e 110,000 101,395
TMREF CONEIIDULION ...t ettt e 190.000 168.079
TOa] IIMIRIE icvresesimsscssceramsmsisssnssssusnssssans sassssesssderssnsasnas 557550 5565750 557055552 300,000 269.474
Insurance:
Health INSUFANCE .......c.vieuiiriierieieceeeeeeee et 512,880 511,048
Health Insurance - REtir€es............ccceeuiiieievuineeieseeiesreesieee e 68,530 133,434
Health Insurance - COBRA ............ocooiioieeeeeetee et 23,410 18,720
Dental INSUFANCE .......c.viiueeiiieeieeeee ettt ettt a e e e 39,650 36,727
LIfE INSUFANCE ...ttt ettt st ene e eaeeenrens 2,000 1,986
HiS:AS. mmmmm e . e e L e 55,600 52441
TOtAl INSUTANCE. ...ttt eet e et e e e eeesaeseseeen 702,070 754,356
Liability Insurance:
VERICIE INSUFANCE.......oveivecveeieeiieeeieetecete ettt e e st ae st eae s e s 33,477 1,249
Liability INSUTANCE ......ccveveieiiieiiciieeee ettt 38,556 43,556
WOTKETS COMPENSALION .....oueeniictcice ettt ettt ese s 386,752 361,759
PrOPErty iNSUTANCE ......coveveueeeieeieseeesteie ettt sse e 28.107 28,107
Total Liability INSUTANCE.........cceeueririieeiieie ettt 486,892 434.671
Lincoln Industrial Commission:
Other services and Charges ............coccerererueueueucucicesenene st 106.000 80,068
Total General GOVEIMMENL .........ccc.ccoeeeuiririeeieierierese e es 2.301.366 2.264.104
(continued)
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City of Lincoln, [llinois Schedule 7
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30,2015

Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year
Amounts Actual

EXPENDITURES (Continued):

Capital Projects:

Capital QULlAY .......coocuiiiiii h) - §$ 2,708,251

N .55 mevew520 13 bt o s oo 5457 o 000« TV TRMEST ST 06 4T o s asos fe fuTacnowseasoss STane - 235,805

Total Capital PrOJECES.........cccccviiiiieciriciinieisie et - 2.944.056

Other Financing Uses

Transfer to DECO...... .ot - 354,326

Transfer t0 DEDt SEIVICE. .......ocuviviicieeeeiceeeceeeeee ettt et e e e e enen 179,491 33,123

TTanSEer 10 SEWET ...t 700,000 -

Transfer to Capital PrOJECES ........cceeiieuieiieeiiieie et 773,526 -

Transferto POlCE PENSION ........cc..vviiiiieiceeecteereeee et e et e e ennan 637,266 -

Transfer to Fire PENSION ...........cociivivieiciiiiicecree ettt ssase e 616,311 -

Total Other FInancing USES..........ccvoeeiiuiiiienieeesreei e seie e 2.906.594 387.449

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ..o ettt et sbe st 9,257,554 9,707,790
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE .........ccoooiiiieeieeeeeteeee e $ 5,167 ( 337,357)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE ...ttt e 3.295.388
ENDING FUND BALANCE $_2,958,031
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 8
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND
MOTOR FUEL TAXFUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year
Amounts Actual
REVENUES:

MOTOT fUET TAXES.......evvveeeeetceet ettt e et e st s s $ 358,974 $ 355,451

D05 S 8110 1.1 e TP 1.500 1.267
TOTAL REVENUES ..........coo oottt e et saeba st aenes 360.474 356.718
EXPENDITURES:

Public Works:

PerSONNE] SEIVICES.......cueeeveiviecteeeeeeee ettt ettt et et ens 139,209 66,325

SUPDPIIES: 7357 e s s -5 25 B SRR - o s < T i 221,100 119,583

Curb/Gutter/SIAEWALKS .......c.ccvevieeeeeeceeeee ettt 162,500 4,272

EQUIPMENt FeNtal........c.cuiiiiiiiieieiiece e 123,900 123,873

Repairs & Maintenance............ccceevueueueueuieienienirieeeicieteee ettt 31,100 7,744

Traflic SignalSm . oo ma e o T o B o 7 R P e e s v passns oo 20,000 17,375

Fifth Streetroad Project..........ocoveieeiiirieieieiere et 300,000 89,053

SR LIENES rorrmrremererrororess e sresmmms st s - seome sA88 5 FEFEEoEae s T SRS (BT e AT e manee 67.500 74.260
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ..........cotitetcteceeteee et e et se e bsbe et 1,065,309 378.612

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

State Grant — [DOT Enhancement ............c.cceeeuieeiiiiiiciciceieee e - 133.486
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ........cccooiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e ($_704.835) (  12,281)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE ...ttt 736,104
ENDING FUND BALANCE $_723,823
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 9
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND
TIF FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original/Final Current
Budgeted Year
Amounts Actual

REVENUES:

PrOPEILY TAXES ....c.vivmiueiiiiteiiteitteieie sttt ettt sttt $ 1,000 $ 6,18

INEETESTINMCOME ..ot e et e et e e e e e e s st e s s s st eseeesreseasestessessnreensnes 1.000 1,341
TOTALREVENUES ..........o ettt ettt ettt ene e s 2.000 7.523
EXPENDITURES:

Economic Development:

SUPPIIES. .ttt 25 -

IV CCEIIEIS crvizemrsresions somnsnesussonsss 5oi e eiereoREm e TEo T I oA ol oo sosafo s sl 20T e s TH0THUES 25 -

CONLGACINAL ....c. ... . oo s e s ot e o, S 250 -

e Al e esn. o . e o oo s B R T e e st g e 250 5,387

BONd ISSUANCE COSIS......eeeeiieieeeeeetee ettt eeeeee e eeesee s e et eree s esssesaeeessssesasesaeeennens - 43,059

IR GRANTS. .ot o ot o L S, ol oo oo s, S L 2,000,000 1,202,145

SHABWALKS ..ottt ettt e et et te e s e ae e ebae et e aeesseaestesssbeesesasessseaenn 350,000 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ... ...ttt s e saeons 2,350,550 1,250,591

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

BONA PrOCEEAS cvi.evivieeneererncsearsreeisestoimmsssmesiossossessosimssssassoseanessonsassresseonssssobensenssess 2,350,000 2,285,000

Bond Premium/ISSUANCE COSES......ueceiiiiieeeeeeiieeeceeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeaeeeeeeesseeeeaereeneas = 61,571

Total Other Financing Sources (USES) ........ccueetrureerreirerreiieisiseeneeeereenas 2.350.000 2.346,571

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE .........ooooiiieteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeet e, $ 1,450 1,103,503
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE .....ooootiieieeeeeeeeeeeeee et 975
ENDING FUND BALANCE $1.104478
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City of Lincoln, Illinois
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2015

Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1.

In April of each year, the Finance Committee of the City Council submits to the City Council a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing that May 1.

A copy of the proposed budget is placed on file with the City Clerk and a date for public hearings is announced.
The budget is passed by City Council.

The appropriation is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.

After adoption of the appropriation, further appropriations are prohibited. Transfers from one appropriation of any
fund to another appropriation of the same fund, not affecting the total amount appropriated, may be made sub ject to
City Council approval.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as management control device during the year for the General Fund, the
Special Revenue Funds, and the Debt Service Fund.

The budget is prepared on the cash basis of accounting.
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City of Lincoln, lllinois Schedule 10
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

April 30,2015
Debt Capital Internal
Special Revenue Funds Service _Projects _Service
Library New City Public Revolving DCEO Hotel/Motel Debt Capital Equipment
Assets Parking Lot Forestry Street Garage Benefits Loan Grant Tax Service Projects Rentals Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents........... $ 27,517 $ 8,633 $279,682 $ 8,101 $260,763 $ il $ 13,104 $ - $284,509 $282,284 $1,164,604
Restricted cash, - - - - - - - 22,389 B - 22,389
Taxes receivable........ccccerennenn.. - - - - - - - 181,200 - - 181.200
TOTAL ASSETS.....covuereeereecrarannne $ 22,517 $_8.633 $279,682 $_8,101 $260,763 S___11 $.13,104 $203,589 $284,509 $282,284 $1.368,193
Liabilities and Fund Balances
LIABILITIES
Deferred revenue...............co........ $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $181,200 $ - $ - $ 181,200
Accounts payable...........c......... - - - - - - 13.09 - - - 13.093
Total Liabilities .................... - - - . - . - - 13,093 181,200 = - 194,293
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Special Projects............c..... 27,517 8,633 279,682 8,101 260,763 11 11 - 284,509 282,284 1,151,511
Debt Service.......oocceeceninnn. - - - R - ~ - - - 22 38 - - 22.389
Total Fund Balances........... P 27517 8.633 279.682 8.101 260,763 11 11 22389 284,509 282.284 1.173.900
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES.........coccieee $272.517 $_8,633 $279,682 $_8,101 $260,263 s__11 $_13,104 $203,589 $284,509 $282,284 $1,368,193
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 11
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015
Debt Capital Internal
Special Revenue Funds Service Projects Service
Library New City Public Revolving DCEO Hotet/Motel Debt Capital Equipment
Parking Lot Forestry Street Garage Benefits Loan Grant Tax Service Projects Rentals Total
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property taxes.......c......c........ $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $178,216 $ - $ - $ 178,216
Hotel/mote! taxes..... - - - - - - 176,452 - - - 176,452
Charges for services ... . - - - - - - - - - 226,390 226,390
Interest income..............ccocovnnee. 17 - 29 - 494 41 9 140 - 700 1,430
TOTAL REVENUES ........ 17 - 29 - 494 41 176,461 178.356 - 227.090 582.488
EXPENDITURES:
General government... - - - - - - 176,452 750 - 155517 192,719
Public works/streets.... . - - - - - 57,311 - - 73553 - 64,864
Capital Outlay ..........cccooverrnne. 10,653 - 125,241 - - 369,044 - - 28,601 163,400 696,939
Debt Service:
Principal .......cooceoveevieenen. - - - - - - 190,500 - 25,508 216,008
Interest......ococevveerivivioniennns - - - - - - - - 15,506 - 1,023 16,529
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,653 - 125,241 - - 426,355 176.452 206.756 36,154 205.448 1.187,059
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES ................ ( _10.636) - ( 125212) - 494 ( 426.314) 9 ( _28.400) ( _36.154) 21.642 604,571)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
State of Illinois— Grant Proceeds 38,153 - - - - 339,650 - - - - 377,803
Common Wealth Edison
Settlement........c.coverivicerennne - - 404,894 - - - - - - - 404,894
Transfer from other funds.. - - - - - 354,326 - 33,123 - 387,449
Transferto other funds ................ - - - - - ( 275.805) - - ( 269.864) - 545 .669)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses).............. 38,153 - 404.894 - - 418,171 - 33.123 ( 269.864) - 624477
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES.................. 27,517 - 279,682 - 494 ( 8143) 9 4,723 { 306,018) 21,642 19,906
FUND BALANCES — BEGINNING - 8633 E 8,101 260.269 8.154 2 17,666 590527 260.642 1,153.994
FUND BALANCES-ENDING...... $ 27,517 $_8,633 $229,682 S_8,101 $260.763 s__ 1 s___ i1 $_22,389 $284,509 $282.284 $1173.900
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City of Lincoln, Illinois

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

SEWER FUND
April 30,2015 and 2014

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equIValents ............ccoeeievniiiiiinincee e
Restricted cash and cash equivalents.............ccooeoiieiininecnee
ACCONNLS HECRIVADIE:: stcuoreee s irogrativesiistinannnas  nase st - siges wwsscsme s smasssion
Prepaid EXPENSES......c.ceueueiieuriiienieietrie ettt

TOtal CUMTENE ASSELS ...eveeeeeeeeeeeee et e et e e e e s eneeseeaecessaneeanes

CAPITAL ASSETS

SEWErage SYSEIM ......couiiiiirieieieieee et
Less: Accumulated depreciation .............cocecvveerereneeieesienieesreeeee e,

Net Capital ASSELS......c.ouuievererireiriesieieieie ettt eseebeeenaes

TOTAL ASSETS......coiiiiiiiiicte ettt eaeaaes

Liabilities and Net Position
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts PAYAbIE..........ccocevuiiiiiieice e
Notes and bonds payable — current portion............ccocceeecrenienirncecaen.

Total Current LiabilItieS.......uvverieeeeieeeeeieeeieeeeeeeee et s ecveeeesees e

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Notes and bonds payable (less current portion) ............oceeveereeerenienranns
157 11 T¢ [ o) =35.41111 14 Ot eSS

Total Long-Term Liabilities .........ccoeeevnimninccicecnneeceeeee

TOTALLIABILITIES ........cccccooiiiiiiiniiitiennenettenennenes

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital @SSets........cccecerieerierriiniereeiiice et
RESITIGEEA oo re e e remesiotte 72 o s om e S s smisnons s S5 (05w 4955 vae 20 o 7 S
UNEESIIICIEA. ..c.veeieceee ettt st

TOTAL NET POSITION

(

Schedule 12

Current Prior
Year Year
Total Total

$ 416,717 $ 577,326
272,505 272,505
348,194 325,685

7.053 -
1.044.465 1,175,516
15,955,156 15,295,945
( _8347.334) ( _7.914.,615)
7.607.822 7.381.330
8.652.287 8,556,846
- 532
525.000 503.667
525,000 504,199
4,450,000 5,057,793
97.427 -

4,547.427 5,057,793

5,072,427 5,561,992

2,535,395 1,819,870

1,149,892 1,149,892
105.427) 25,092

$_3.579,860 $_2,994.854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 13
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
SEWER FUND
For the Years Ended April 30,2015 and 2014
Current Prior
Year Year
Total Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Char@es TOr SEIVICES. ... ..oiiiuseretssessesanssussssessisns susasssasse sesssossssosessasssssous asbussas s stase $ 2,889,050 % 2,875,365
OthET INCOIME ...ttt etete ettt e et e a e s aetaeseeeresaesaesessesnsenns 68.451 15.484
Total Operating RevVenUeS = .-« oaxsus amos- s sowmizrzseds - Rsesaiiy sy ssse s o« 2,957.501 2.890.849
OPERATING EXPENSES
RETSONNE] SERVICE mvrevimmresseamsrairrsnnes sas sonass s7e swissss s 55355 05775350 D05 ST TAEIGETES FaiTannnsnassnssosasie 70,639 84,981
Contractual MAINENANCE ........ccuccveeeerieereeiieeeetesereeeeseeesesseeeesseeeessssessssessesss 1,364,677 1,419,367
Supplies and Materials...........cccoieirinenieinieee s 20,724 8,911
Other fees and Charges.........c.coveevueiieneiininirece s 67,902 24,560
IDEPITECIALION. ......cvceeuiaesivisesssamesfaisrssinse fonsssssstsdenennsassansensassrsasessssenstedssinssnssaimess 432,719 442,904
Repairs and MaiNteNanCE. .......c.coccueireeriiriiieeeeereereeeete st ee 46,510 26,115
OFFICE SUPPHES .ttt 4,239 4,298
PROSTADE. .o o0 203 o550 Toa (oT T W oo oS0 TS oG A 4 55 sl o TSRO EE ST e o 12,421 13,010
TEIBPROMNE ... ettt 942 884
INSUTAIICE. .. vttt ettt et e e eeeeesba e e eebe e saeeeassaeeseraeesenseneenn 22,000 8237
B i U O S s 5. 2 75w s ssmans s e 5570 0TS TS ST Ta T ¥ TR e s mmast e sas 219.952 235,840
Total Operating EXPenses..........c.coeerrieueuinirennieieeesrieceneeceecee e 2.262.725 2.264.102
Net Operating INCOME ..ottt et 694.776 626.747
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
[YETESE ANCOTIIRL. ... .. s s o Sreves e T 5o Tamoa g e s s e e w5 ¥4 e e FESERAT T e TR S 943 1,522
INEErESt (EXPENSE).ceiuririeiiietiieieeietireete sttt ettt ae et st e e sseseeene e ( 110,713) ( 152,394)
Operating tranSfers N .........ccoooieueireeere ettt eeeeaes 642,066 720,387
Operating transfers (OUL)........coooiiriereerieeeetee ettt (__642.0660) ( _ 720,387)
Total Nonoperating (EXPEnses) .........ccvieevuririeuenreucrenieieenecesieseemenceseeennenes ( 109.770) ( __150.872)
NET CHANGE IN NET POSITION ......cccooiiiiiiieieiesteeeeeee e enea 585,006 475,875
NET POSITION - BEGINNING.......cooiiiiiitiieneieeeteeeeet et saese e eses 2.994.854 2,518.979
NET POSITION - ENDING $_3.579.860  $_2.994,854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 14
SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATES,
EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS
For The Year Ended April 30, 2015

2014 2013 2012
Levy Levy Levy
ASSESSED VALUATION.....coiiiinninsnnsnnssssssssssssssssssssssnss $151,714,655 $145,467,019 $145,150,904
TAX RATES

GENETAL ...ttt .03635 .03813 .01321
P6liCE TICIECTION ..vx. .. conttumms, Zumees et g assasssss - st - brsmigong 04139 .04341 04362
Fire Protection........coocueeeeeieineceeceeee e 08712 .09138 09183
FOBETY 505550050 51550 s 15w 07 s i + e 005 M ST 20 s+ .03370 03535 .03552
FIFCIEN'S POMGIQL - 5% e coior o« 50 oo s S5 50wv3 M85 45 28871 30285 30433
Firemen's SpOUSE PENSION .....ccuevveeuieieiiieeiiieiiieeeeeieenes 00054 00056 .00056
Policemen's PEnSion..........c.coceieeuirinieninineeieecieireseeeseienens 32123 33696 .33861
1507 0 20 P —————————— R S — 09480 09944 09993
EMErgency SEIVICe. ......couvivrurererieireeriereeneesesansessesenenns 00282 00295 .00297
Rurblicibeme it sy s summm- -0 - S ees d Sosmstiaasmar s he B - .03253 03412 .03428
Liability INSUFANCE .....ceeveeeeeeeeieeeeieieeeit et .08770 .09199 09244
BIUAIL....... oneensseoisss sovsbeisosssassasuniissnsans s snansansasnsse st s dshs covasas .01209 .01268 01274
BONIUE, 175555 s s e o w5 575758 5 555 TS M 5 » o 5555+ 12348 12930 13042
School crossing guard.............ceeeveererreereenerieniniieeeieneene. 00457 00509 00511
SOLIA] SOEUIIY a5 51550 0x5 wsansssusann ssansunden svawasasaess vasaaseseisssssss 06228 06533 06565

7 7L R e T e— 1.22931 1.28954 127122

(continued)
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City of Lincoln, Illinois Schedule 14
SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATES,
EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS
For The Year Ended April 30, 2015

2014 2013 2012
Extended Extended Extended

TAX EXTENSIONS
GENETAL. . . .« v e 5w 58 s A s s e e s S o $ 52535 § 52535 § 18,112
POLICE PrOtECHION ......cveveeeveieieieieeete ettt aenens 59,820 59,809 59,807
Fire ProteCtion........cocvevvierieriericeiirecrictecrecreseeereevesene e eseveenes 125,911 125,902 125,907
[R@ICIMEY, s s i s s T s 5+ - 5555 5B Tl SRSl 48,705 48,705 48,701
Firemen's Pension ........ccocuvueirieeeeneeeneeinieeeeseeneesneeenes 417,262 417,261 417,263
Firemen's SPOUSE PENSION ......covrvervevireeeeenireenireerireeneeesieienns 780 772 768
Policemen’s Pension..........ccccevveereeineneeneneneneseeseveeneenns 464,262 464,257 464,263
LRI TR i s waas s agaa e s Ko 35 00000 GO s 50 137,011 137,006 137,013
EMELZENCY SEIVICE . cueevisncsss sesesassssssamsorsss sosbssss seserssasesssomios 4,076 4,064 4.072
Public benefit.......ccccccoiviiiiiiiicericeecceecce e 47,014 47,010 47,001
12 Dil1ty) A TITARCE . acuen s, umesessssvessms dussmensme <  cosamssn oo 473 126,750 126,742 126,743
AUAIL.. oottt e ettt 17,473 17,470 17,468
I L ] S nes aav s v s« e o 95 S R e 178,461 178,147 178,817
School crossing guard.........oeuevevveeiererseensseceeneesnnnnenenenenes 6,605 7,013 7,006
SOCIAl SECUTILY ...everirerirereeeeeeereteeeree e ere e sne e v nenns 90,011 90.010 90.012
Total EXENAEd ..ottt $1.776.676  $1.776,703  $1,742.953
g 1551 0G0 | (] DS ————— $1,775,568  $1,735.570
Pexcenfage CONCRIEH.. .. v emmuysze v suaaiiamsaiassssoss o o soss se st o sone v 99% 99%
Road and Bridge Collection...........coceveeieueveeeeriiecnniencieienns $__72991 §__72.741
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City of Lincoln, [llinois
SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
For The Year Ended April 30, 2015

ASSESSED VALUATION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014................
DEBT LIMITATION, 8.625% OF ASSESSED VALUATION......ccccoviviivinennnnnncninancnsnnens
TOTAL DEBT
General obligation bonds (refunding bond) .........cccoeeevireecviiiniinnecerrireeene $ 4,975,000
Tax increment financing general obligation (altemative revenue source)...... 2,285,000
7,260,000
Less debt paid from other SOUrCES............covirvirieiiiiieicircireeeceeenes ( __726.000)
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN, APRIL 30, 2015 .......ccceccevueenverurnnces

Schedule 15

$151,714,655

$ 13,085,389

$13.089.389
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MICHAEL A. FAFOGLIA, C.PA.

November 9, 2015

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Lincoln, Illinois

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lincoln, Illinois, for the
year ended April 30,2015. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about
our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards as well as certain information related to
the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you
dated July 13, 2015. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following
information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City of Lincoln, Illinois, are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during the fiscal year ending April 30, 2015. We noted no wansactions entered into by the
governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a
result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.



Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated November 9, 2015.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's auditors.

However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Mayor and City Council and management of the
City of Lincoln, Illinois, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Very truly yours,

WW&PM

Certified Public Accountants
Springfield, Illinois



